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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

We believe this annual report contains “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These statements are
subject to risks and uncertainties and are based on the beliefs and assumptions of our management, based on information currently available to our management. When
we use words such as “believes,” “expects,” “anticipates,” “intends,” “plans,” “estimates,” “should,” “likely” or similar expressions, we are making forward-looking
statements. Forward-looking statements include information concerning our possible or assumed future results of operations set forth under “Business” and/or
“Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”

» « » » « » «

Forward-looking statements reflect only our current expectations. We may not update these forward-looking statements, even though our situation may change in the
future. In any forward-looking statement, where we express an expectation or belief as to future results or events, such expectation or belief is expressed in good faith
and believed to have a reasonable basis, but there can be no assurance that the statement of expectation or belief will be achieved or accomplished. Our actual results,
performance or achievements could differ materially from those expressed in, or implied by, the forward-looking statements due to a number of uncertainties, many of
which are unforeseen, including:

. the timing and success of our acquisition strategy;

. the timing and success of expanding our market presence in our current locations, successfully entering into new markets, adding new services and
integrating acquired businesses;

. the timing, magnitude and terms of a revised credit facility to accommodate our growth;
. competition within our industry; and
. the availability of additional capital on terms acceptable to us.

In addition, you should refer to the “Risk Factors” section of this Form 10-K under Item 1 for a discussion of other factors that may cause our actual results to differ
materially from those implied by our forward-looking statements. As a result of these factors, we cannot assure you that the forward-looking statements in this
Registration Statement will prove to be accurate. Furthermore, if our forward-looking statements prove to be inaccurate, the inaccuracy may be material. In light of the
significant uncertainties in these forward-looking statements, you should not regard these statements as a representation or warranty by us or any other person that we
will achieve our objectives and plans in any specified time frame, if at all. Accordingly, you should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements.

We qualify all the forward-looking statements contained in this Form 10-K by the foregoing cautionary statements.




PART I
Item 1. Business
Overview

Anchor Funding Services, Inc. (formerly BTHC XI, Inc.), is a corporation organized under the laws of the State of Delaware on August 16, 2006. Anchor Funding
Services, Inc. owns 100% of its operating subsidiary, Anchor Funding Services LLC, a limited liability company, which was incorporated under the laws of the State
of North Carolina on March 24, 2004. (For a discussion of the corporate history of the Company, reference is made to Item 1 of the Company’s Form 10-K for its
fiscal year ended December 31, 2011.) Except as otherwise provided in this Form 10-K, unless the context otherwise requires, references in this Form 10-K to the
“Company,” “Anchor,” “we,” “us” and “our” refers collectively to the consolidated business and operations of Anchor Funding Services, Inc. and its wholly-owned
operating subsidiary, Anchor Funding Services LLC.

Factoring

Our business objective is to create a well-recognized, national financial services firm for small businesses providing accounts receivable funding (factoring), purchase
order finance, outsourcing of accounts receivable management including collections and the risk of customer default and other specialty finance products including,
but not limited to, trade finance and government contract funding. For certain service businesses, Anchor also provides back office support, including payroll and
invoice processing services. We provide our services to clients nationwide and may expand our services internationally in the future. We plan to achieve our growth
objectives as described below through internal growth through a network of business development personnel and mass media marketing initiatives. Our plans also
include a combination of strategic and add-on acquisitions of other factoring and related specialty finance firms and other types of firms that serve small businesses in
the United States and Canada that could provide cross-selling opportunities. Our principal operations are located in Charlotte, North Carolina and we maintain an
executive office in Boca Raton, Florida, which includes its sales and marketing functions. We have a sales office in Medley, Florida which sells freight bill funding
services to transportation companies under our TruckerFunds.com trade name.

Factoring is the purchase of a company’s accounts receivable, which provide businesses with critical working capital so they can meet their operational costs and
obligations while waiting to receive payment from their customers. Factoring services also provide businesses with credit and accounts receivable management
services. Typically, these businesses do not have adequate resources to manage internally their credit and accounts receivable functions. Factoring services are
typically a non-recourse arrangement whereby the factor takes the entire credit risk if the customer does not pay due to insolvency for any period of time or on a partial
non-recourse basis where the factor takes the credit risk for a period of time, which could be 30 to 90 days after the factor purchases an account receivable such that if
a client’s customer becomes insolvent during this specific period of time, the factor bears the loss. Under partial non-recourse factoring, after a specific period of time,
if the accounts receivable invoice is not collected, the client is required to purchase the accounts receivable invoice back from Anchor. Factoring may also be on a full
recourse basis whereby the factor bears no risk of loss if the client’s customer becomes insolvent. We typically advance our clients 75% to 95% of the face value of
invoices that we approve in advance on a partial non-recourse or full recourse basis and pay them the difference less our fees when the invoice is collected. For our
years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, our fees for services averaged approximately 2.6% and 3.1%, respectively of the invoice value and are tiered such that the
longer it takes us to collect on the accounts receivable invoice, the greater our fee. Since our inception, Anchor has incurred net credit losses related to the volume of
its invoice purchases totaling approximately $42,000, $12,000 and $26,000 in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. We also offer a factoring product to independent
truckers and trucking companies through our transportation funding division, TruckerFunds.com. TruckerFunds.com focuses on buying freight bills from independent,
owner operators of trucks and small fleets. We typically advance our trucking clients 90% to 95% of the invoices that we approve in advance on a non-recourse basis
and pay them the difference less our fees when the invoice is collected. At times we offer non-recourse factoring to transportation companies.

A summary of some of the advantages of factoring for a small business is as follows:

- Faster application process since factoring is focused on credit worthiness of the accounts receivable as security and not the financial performance of the
company;

- Unlimited funding based on “eligible” and “credit worthy” accounts receivable; and

- No financial covenants.




We offer our services nationwide to any type of business where we can verify and substantiate an accounts receivable invoice for delivery of a product or performance
of a service. We believe that this market is under served by banks and other funding institutions that find many of these companies not “bankable” because of their
size, limited operating history, thin capitalization, seasonality patterns or poor, inconsistent financial performance. Anchor’s focus is providing funding based on the
quality of our clients’ customers’ ability to pay and the validity of the accounts receivable invoice. Anchor utilizes credit and verification processes to assist in assuring
that customers are creditworthy and invoices are valid. We predominantly secure our funding by having a senior first lien on all clients’ accounts receivable and other
tangible and intangible assets. At times we enter into Intercreditor agreements with banks or other financial institutions that subordinate the accounts receivable to us
so we may purchase them. We also often obtain personal and validity guarantees from our clients’ owners.

Purchase Order Financing

Many businesses have orders from creditworthy companies, but do not have the financial resources to fill the orders by contracting for the manufacturing of the
products ordered. Based on these orders which are generally non-cancelable, we pay our clients’ suppliers and manufacturers directly so they may procure their
products. This occurs after the products meet certain inspection requirements or specifications. Subsequently the products are shipped to the customer and billed by
our client. Once billed, Anchor factors the invoice and collects payment from the customer. For purchase order financing, Anchor will pay for 100% of the product’s
cost.

GROWTH OPPORTUNITIES AND STRATEGIES

Our strategy is to become a nationally recognized brand for accounts receivable funding and other related financial services for small businesses. This expansion is
expected to be accomplished with business development personnel, media marketing campaigns targeting small businesses and through accretive acquisitions of
competitive firms and add-on purchases which broaden our mix of services, brands, customers and geographic and economic diversity. Our focus is to increase
revenues and profits, through a combination of internal growth and acquisitions, primarily within our core disciplines and expansion into new service offerings. The
key elements to our acquisition growth strategy include the following:

receivable portfolios and possibly the business development and management teams of other local and regional factoring firms, primarily firms in the United
States with revenues of generally less than $10 million. Significant operating leverage and reduced costs are achieved by consolidating back office support
functions. Increased revenues across a larger accounts receivable portfolio is anticipated to lead to lower costs of capital, which may enhance profitability. We
intend to evaluate acquisitions using numerous criteria including historical financial performance, management strength, service quality, diversification of
customer base and operating characteristics. Our senior management team has prior experience in other service industries in identifying and evaluating
attractive acquisition targets and integrating acquired businesses.

- Expand our service offerings by acquiring related specialty finance firms that serve small businesses. These specialty firms will broaden the services that we
provide so that we can fulfill additional financial service needs of existing clients and target additional small businesses in different industries. The following
are types of specialty finance firms that we will target and is not all-inclusive:

o Purchase order and import/export financing;
o Government contract financing; and
o Transportation / freight invoice financing.

o Traditionally, factors have expanded their businesses by having quality BDOs network with accountants, lawyers, brokers and other referral sources
to obtain accounts. We are looking for quality BDOs in certain markets.

and outsource credit risk and accounts receivable management. Our experience has been that many small businesses have limited awareness that factoring
exists and is a viable financing alternative option for them. We have a marketing strategy that focuses on creating a national factoring brand identity. This is
expected to be accomplished through various marketing initiatives and business alliances. These marketing strategies include:




o Media advertising in key metropolitan markets;

Increase our pay-per-click internet advertising which in the past has been a successful strategy for Anchor; and

Radio spot advertising on talk radio and sports oriented programming whose primary demographic are small business owners.
o Establish cross-selling alliances with other small business providers including:

Small business accounting and tax preparation service firms;

Small business service centers, providing packing and shipping; and

Commercial insurance brokers.
o Develop a referral network of business brokers, consultants, accountants and attorneys.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Factoring as it functions today has been in existence for nearly 200 years. Its historical focus has been in the textile and apparel industries, which provides products to
major retailers. The factoring industry has expanded beyond the textile and apparel industries into other mainstream businesses. Anchor may provide funding to
businesses where the performance of a service or the delivery of a product can be verified. We have the ability to check a company’s credit and evaluate its ability to
pay across most industries. Hence, Anchor’s target prospects are most small businesses that sell to other businesses.

According to the Commercial Finance Association (CFA), an industry trade association for asset based lending and factoring companies, factoring volume (the dollar
value of invoices purchased) in 2011 increased approximately 10.3% for the factoring firms that were surveyed. The factoring firms surveyed had factoring volume of
$88.3 billion in 2011 compared to $80.1 billion in 2010. For the years 2009 and prior the CFA provides estimates for total factoring volume in the United States
indicating a 14.2% decrease to $116.6 billion from $136 billion in 2008. The decline from 2008 to 2009 is attributable to the economic recession in the United States.
Generally, except for recession-driven decreases, factoring has sustained a 30 year pattern of growth and there is a greater acceptance of the factoring product. A
primary strategy of the Company is to increase revenues and profitability by acquiring the accounts receivable portfolios and possibly the business development and
management teams of other local and regional factoring firms by primarily targeting acquisition firms in the United States with revenues of generally less than $10
million. Management of our company is unable to estimate the portion of the market which consists of companies in our targeted market for acquisition. Nevertheless,
management believes that our targeted market for acquisitions represents a small portion of the overall United States factoring volume.

Management believes that the fragmentation of the market among other factors, make this industry attractive for consolidation. Driving factors for consolidation
include:

Limited growth capital for small factors. Small factoring firms may have credit availability constraints limiting the business volume which they can factor.
The financial leverage that banks typically provide a finance company is a function of the capital in the business. The opportunity to combine their businesses
with Anchor’s capital and possible lower cost of funds, back office support and potentially a larger credit facility are incentives to sell their business,
particularly where they would receive our capital stock in return as part or all of the transaction price.

Anchor would provide an exit strategy for owners of small factoring firms who may have much of their personal wealth tied to the business and want to retire.
A cash sale of a factoring firm would provide liquidity to the owner of a factoring firm and the opportunity to receive a price over the factoring firm’s book
value.

OPERATIONS

Our executive officers, namely Morry F. Rubin, CEO and Brad Bernstein, President/CFO, manage our day-to-day operations and internal growth and oversee our
growth strategy. Anchor has two account executives, an underwriter, a Controller/Vice President of factoring operations, and two sales people. Our Controller/Vice
President of factoring operations monitors the portfolio (along with the President), oversees credit, maintains our books and records, wires funds daily to clients and
provides back office oversight. The underwriter analyzes prospective funding transactions.




Underwriting Process

We have developed and utilize standard underwriting procedures, which are controlled in a checklist format that is reviewed and approved by members of the credit
committee. The credit committee is presently comprised of our executive officers, although these functions may be delegated to other responsible personnel in the
future as our company expands our operations. A member or members of the credit committee approve all new accounts and conduct periodic credit reviews of the
client portfolio. Underwriting criteria include the following:

Background and credit checks are performed on the owners.

Personal or validity guarantees are sometimes obtained from the owners.

We “notify” all accounts that are purchased. Anchor is a notification factor, which means that we notify in writing all accounts purchased that we have
purchased the account and payments are to be made to Anchor’s central lockbox. Our clients’ invoices also provide Anchor’s lockbox as address for
payments. We typically also have a notification statement on our clients’ invoices that indicate we have purchased the account and payment is to be made to
Anchor.

Initially we attempt to verify most of a new customer’s accounts. Verification may include review of third-party documentation, telephone discussions or
email correspondence with the client’s customer so that we may substantiate that invoices are valid and without dispute.

We typically evaluate the creditworthiness on accounts with more than a $2,500 balance.

Other standard diligence testing includes payroll tax payment verification, company status with state of incorporation, pre and post filing lien searches and
review of prior years’ corporate tax returns. For TruckerFunds.com accounts we do not verify payroll tax payments or review prior years’ tax returns.

We require that our clients enter into a factoring and security agreement or purchase order finance agreement and file a first senior lien on purchased accounts,
and on a case-by-case basis, sometimes on all of our clients’ tangible and intangible assets. For purchase order financings we also have a senior lien on
inventory.

Credit Management

To efficiently and quickly determine the credit worthiness of an account, we utilize an instant credit checking system that we call Creditguard. Creditguard is an in-
house evaluation tool that we have developed, but we do not claim any proprietary rights at this time. Creditguard utilizes a proven credit formula that combines
various Dun & Bradstreet credit data elements. This formula and system provide an initial credit limit so that accounts can be approved or rejected quickly. If
additional credit is necessary beyond the initial credit limit, we then independently check three vendor references and a bank reference to determine if additional credit
can be extended. Collection calls are usually made in advance of their due date to secure a commitment or estimated time to receive payment.

CLIENTS

Our clients are all small businesses that typically range in size from start-up to $30 million in annual sales. We provide our factoring services to any type of business
where we can verify and substantiate an accounts receivable invoice for delivery of a product or performance of a service. Examples of current factoring clients
include a commercial janitorial company, transportation company, medical staffing firm, and an IT consulting company. We typically provide our purchase order
finance services to companies that have non-cancelable orders from credit worthy companies. Examples of current purchase order finance clients include an
importer/distributor of after-market auto parts and a distributor of plastics. We target all small businesses that sell to other businesses to educate and convert them to
factoring and purchase order finance. We believe that this small business market is under served by banks and other funding institutions that view many of these
companies not “bankable” because of their size, limited operating history, thin capitalization or poor / inconsistent financial performance. Our focus is funding based
on the quality of our clients’ customer’s ability to pay and the validity of the accounts receivable invoice or purchase order. Anchor has credit and verification
processes to assist in assuring that customers are creditworthy and invoices and purchase orders are valid. We secure our funding by placing a senior first lien on all
clients’ accounts receivable, inventory for purchase order finance transactions and other tangible and intangible assets. We also often obtain personal guarantees from
our clients’ owners.

SALES AND MARKETING
Our marketing strategies include, without limitation, the following:

Expand our discount factoring business by hiring Business Development Officers (BDOs) in key metropolitan markets. These BDOs network with other
small business providers including traditional bankers, accountants, lawyers and insurance brokers.

Media advertising in key metropolitan markets; increase our internet advertising which in the past has been a successful strategy for Anchor; and radio spot
advertising on talk radio and sports oriented programming whose primary demographic are small business owners.

Establish cross-selling alliances with other small business providers including: small business accounting and tax preparation service firms, and commercial
insurance brokers.

Develop a referral network of business brokers, consultants and accountants and attorneys;




MANAGEMENT INFORMATION SYSTEMS

We utilize a factoring industry software program designed to effectively manage and operate a factoring company. This system currently manages multiple functions
from purchasing invoices, advancing funds, recording collections and rebating clients. The system generates, on demand, numerous management reports including
purchase activity, collections activity, return on capital, advances outstanding, accounts receivable trends, and credit reports which provide us with the ability to track,
monitor and control the collateral (purchased accounts receivable). In addition, the software integrates with our general ledger accounting package, which enables us to
meet our financial reporting requirements. Our clients can retrieve key on-line management reports and statements.

Purchase order financing transactions are also currently managed through the factoring software.

Our current software platform can support our growth. Hardware redundancy, backup strategies and disaster recovery have been planned to reduce the risk of
downtime.

GOVERNMENT REGULATIONS

To management’s knowledge, factoring receivables and purchase order financing are not regulated industries, as we do not make loans. Nevertheless, if any of the
transactions entered into by us are deemed to be loans or financing transactions by a court of law instead of a true purchase of accounts receivable, then various state
laws and regulations would become applicable to us and could limit the fees and other charges we are able to charge our customers and may further subject us to any
penalties under such state laws and regulations. These laws would also:

. regulate credit granting activities, including establishing licensing requirements, if any, in various jurisdictions,
. require disclosures to customers,

. govern secured transactions,

. set collection, foreclosure, repossession and claims handling procedures and other trade practices,

. prohibit discrimination in the extension of credit, and

. regulate the use and reporting of information related to a seller’s credit experience and other data collection.

This could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, liquidity and results of operations. See “Risk Factors.”
COMPETITION

The factoring and financial service industry is highly fragmented and competitive. Competitive factors vary depending upon financial services products offered,
customer, and geographic region. Competitive forces may limit our ability to charge our customary fees and raise fees to our customers in the future. Pressure on our
margins is intensive and we cannot assure you that we will be able to successfully compete with our competitors. We are currently an insignificant competitor in our
industry, which includes national, regional and local independent and bank owned factoring and finance companies and other full service factoring and financing
organizations. Many of these competitors are larger than we are and may have access to capital at a lower cost than we do. Management estimates, based on
examination of Dun & Bradstreet data and a market overview provided by a merger and acquisition advisory firm, that there are approximately 2,900 accounts
receivable factoring and/or business financing firms in the United States, including us. To our knowledge, no single firm dominates the small business segment of the
industry.

EMPLOYEES

As of March 29, 2013, we have seven full-time employees.




Item 1A. Risk Factors

You should carefully consider the following risk factors, in addition to the other information presented in this Form 10-K, in evaluating us and our business. Any
of the following risks, as well as other risks and uncertainties, could harm our business and financial results and cause the value of our securities to decline,
which in turn could cause you to lose all or part of your investment.

Limited operating history. Anchor Funding Services, LLC has only a limited operating history upon which investors may judge our performance. Future operating
results will depend upon many factors, including, without limitation our ability to keep credit losses to a minimum, fluctuations in the economy, the degree and nature
of competition, demand for our services, and our ability to integrate the operations of acquired businesses, to expand into new markets and to maintain margins in the
face of pricing pressures. We can provide no assurances that our operations will result in us meeting our anticipated level of projected profitable operations, if at all.

Competition for customers in our industry is intense, and if we are not able to effectively compete, our financial results could be harmed and the price of our
shares could decline. The factoring and financial service industry is highly competitive. There are many large full-service and specialized financing companies, as
well as local and regional companies, which compete with us in the factoring and purchase order financing industry. Competition in our markets is intense. These
competitive forces limit our ability to raise fees to our customers. Pressure on our margins is intense, and we cannot assure you that we will be able to successfully
compete with our competitors, many of whom have substantially greater resources than we do. If we are not able to effectively compete in our targeted markets, our
operating margins and other financial results will be harmed and the market price of our securities could decline.

If we are not able to maintain adequate lines of credit on commercially reasonable terms, our financial condition or results of operations could suffer. We have the
availability of a $10 million Rediscount Credit Facility with a Commercial Bank. The maximum amount that can be borrowed under the facility is $10 million and the
Bank advances up to 80% of Anchor’s advances to its clients. The agreement’s anniversary date is November 30, 2013 and automatically renews each year for an
additional year provided that the Company has not provided 60 days notice to the financial institution in advance of the anniversary date. This facility is secured by our
assets, and contains certain standard covenants, representations and warranties for loans of this type. In the event that we fail to comply with the covenant(s) and the
lender does not waive such non-compliance, we could be in default of our credit facility, which could subject us to penalty rates of interest and accelerate the maturity
of the outstanding balances. The Credit Agreement contains standard representations, warranties and events of default for facilities of this type. Occurrences of an
event of default under our credit facility allow the lender to accelerate the payment of the loans and/or terminate the commitments to lend, in addition to other legal
remedies, including foreclosure on collateral. In the event we are not able to maintain adequate credit facilities for our factoring, purchase order financing and
acquisition needs on commercially reasonable terms, our ability to operate our business and complete one or more acquisitions would be significantly impacted and
our financial condition and results of operations could suffer. We can provide no assurances that replacement facilities will be obtained by us on terms satisfactory to
us, if at all.

We may acquire companies in the future and these acquisitions could disrupt our business or adversely dffect our earnings. Further, we may complete
acquisitions without first obtaining stockholder approval under applicable Delaware Law. We intend to acquire small and/or medium local and/or regional factoring
and financial service businesses. Our ability to complete acquisitions in the future may be impacted by many factors, including, without limitation, companies
available for acquisition and the ability to achieve favorable terms. Entering into an acquisition entails many risks, any of which could harm our business, including,
without limitation, failure to successfully integrate the acquired company with our existing business, retention of key employees, alienation or impairment of
relationships with substantial customers or key employees of the acquired business or our existing business, and assumption of liabilities of the acquired business. Any
acquisition that we consummate also may have an adverse affect on our liquidity or earnings and may be dilutive to our earnings. Adverse business conditions or
developments suffered by or associated with any business we acquire additionally could result in impairment to the goodwill or intangible assets associated with the
acquired businesses, and a related write down of the value of these assets, and adversely affect our earnings. Further, we may complete acquisitions without first
obtaining stockholder approval under applicable Delaware Law.

Risks Associated with our Growth Strategy. Our plans for growth, both internal and through acquisition of other factoring and financial service companies, are subject
to numerous and substantial risks. We can provide no assurances that we will be able to expand our market presence in our current locations, successfully enter new
markets, add new services and/or integrate acquired businesses into our operations. Our continued growth is dependent upon a number of factors, including the
availability of working capital to support such growth, our response to existing and emerging competition, our ability to maintain sufficient profit margins while
experiencing pricing pressures, our efforts to develop and maintain customer and employee relationships, and the hiring, training and retention of qualified personnel.
We can provide no assurances that we will be able to identify acceptable acquisition candidates on terms favorable to us in a timely manner, if at all. We expect to
require additional debt or equity financing for future acquisitions, which additional financing may not be available on terms favorable to the Company, if at all. We can
provide no assurances that any acquired business will be profitable.




We will seek to make acquisitions that may prove unsuccessful or strain or divert our resources. We intend to seek to expand our business through the acquisition of
competitors’ factoring and service businesses and assets. We may not be able to complete any acquisitions on favorable terms, if at all. Acquisitions present risks that
could materially and adversely affect our business and financial performance, including:

the diversion of our management's attention from our everyday business activities;
the contingent and latent risks associated with the past operations of, and other unanticipated problems arising in, the acquired business; and
the need to expand management, administration, and operational systems.

If we make, or plan to make, such acquisitions we cannot predict whether:

we will be able to successfully integrate the operations and personnel of any new businesses into our business;

we will realize any anticipated benefits of completed acquisitions;

there will be substantial unanticipated costs associated with acquisitions, including potential costs associated with liabilities undiscovered at the
time of acquisition; or

stockholder approval of an acquisition will be sought.

In addition, future acquisitions by us may result in:
potentially dilutive issuances of our equity shares;
the incurrence of additional debt;
restructuring charges; and
the recognition of significant charges for depreciation and amortization related to intangible assets.
We purchase accounts receivable primarily from and make purchase order advances to privately owned small companies, which present a greater risk of loss than
purchasing accounts receivable from and purchase order advances to larger companies. Our portfolio consists primarily of accounts receivable and purchase order
advances from small, privately owned businesses with annual revenues ranging from start-up to $30 million. Compared to larger, publicly owned firms, these
companies generally have more limited access to capital and higher funding costs, may be in a weaker financial position and may need more capital to expand or
compete. These financial challenges may make it difficult for our clients to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, advances made to these types of clients entail
higher risks than advances made to companies who are able to access traditional credit sources. In part because of their smaller size, our clients may:
« experience significant variations in operating results;
« have narrower product lines and market shares than their larger competitors;

* be particularly vulnerable to changes in customer preferences and market conditions;

* be more dependent than larger companies on one or more major customers, the loss of which could materially impair their business, financial condition and
prospects;

« face intense competition, including from companies with greater financial, technical, managerial and marketing resources;

 depend on the management talents and efforts of a single individual or a small group of persons for their success, the death, disability or resignation of whom
could materially harm the
client’s financial condition or prospects;

« have less skilled or experienced management personnel than larger companies; and/or

* do business in regulated industries, such as the healthcare industry, and could be adversely affected by policy or regulatory changes.




Accordingly, any of these factors could impair a client’s cash flow or result in other events, such as bankruptcy, which could limit our ability to collect on this client’s
purchased accounts receivable or purchase order advances, and may lead to losses in our portfolio and a decrease in our revenues, net income and assets.

We may be adversely affected by deteriorating economic or business conditions. Our business, financial condition and results of operations may be adversely affected
by various economic factors, including the level of economic activity in the markets in which we operate. Delinquencies and credit losses generally increase during
economic slowdowns or recessions. Because we fund primarily small businesses, many of our clients may be particularly susceptible to economic slowdowns or
recessions and could impair a client’s cash flow or result in other events, such as bankruptcy, which could limit our ability to collect on this client’s purchased accounts
receivable and purchase order advances, and may lead to losses in our portfolio and a decrease in our revenues, net income and assets. Unfavorable economic
conditions may also make it more difficult for us to maintain both our new business origination volume and the credit quality of new business at levels previously
attained. Unfavorable economic conditions also could increase our funding costs, limit our access to the capital markets or result in a decision by lenders not to extend
credit to us. These events could significantly harm our operating results.

Our limited operating history makes it difficult for us to accurately judge the credit performance of our portfolio and, as a result, increases the risk that our
allowance for credit losses may prove inadequate. Our business depends on the creditworthiness of our clients’ customers and our clients. While we conduct due
diligence and a review of the creditworthiness of most of our clients’ customers and all of our clients, this review requires the application of significant judgment by
our management. Our judgment may not be correct. We maintain an allowance for credit losses on our consolidated financial statements in an amount that reflects our
judgment concerning the potential for losses inherent in our portfolio. Management periodically reviews the appropriateness of our allowance considering economic
conditions and trends, collateral values and credit quality indicators. We cannot assure you that our estimates and judgment with respect to the appropriateness of our
allowance for credit losses are accurate. Our allowance may not be adequate to cover credit losses in our portfolio as a result of unanticipated adverse changes in the
economy or events adversely affecting specific clients, industries or markets. If our allowance for credit losses is not adequate, our net income will suffer, and our
financial performance and condition could be significantly impaired.

We may not have all of the material information relating to a potential client at the time that we make a credit decision with respect to that potential client or at the
time we advance funds to the client. As a result, we may suffer credit losses or make advances that we would not have made if we had all of the material
information. There is generally no publicly available information about the privately owned companies to which we generally purchase accounts receivable from.
Therefore, we must rely on our clients and the due diligence efforts of our employees to obtain the information that we consider when making our credit decisions. To
some extent, our employees depend and rely upon the management of these companies to provide full and accurate disclosure of material information concerning their
business, financial condition and prospects. If we do not have access to all of the material information about a particular client’s business, financial condition and
prospects, or if a client’s accounting records are poorly maintained or organized, we may not make a fully informed credit decision which may lead, ultimately, to a
failure or inability to collect our purchased accounts receivable and purchase order advances in their entirety.

We may make errors in evaluating accurate information reported by our clients and, as a result, we may suffer credit losses. We underwrite our clients and clients’
customers based on certain financial information. Even if clients provide us with full and accurate disclosure of all material information concerning their businesses,
we may misinterpret or incorrectly analyze this information. Mistakes by our staff and credit committee may cause us to make purchase order advances and purchase
accounts receivable that we otherwise would not have purchased, to fund advances that we otherwise would not have funded or result in credit losses.

Risks related to our financing activities. In April 2010, our then 80% owned subsidiary suffered a credit loss of approximately $650,000 due to an alleged fraud by
one of its clients. We are currently pursuing all legal remedies to recover our losses incurred in connection with such fraud as described under "Item 3." If we were to
experience other material losses on our accounts receivable and purchase order portfolio, they could have a material adverse effect on (i) our ability to fund our
business and, (ii) to the extent the losses exceed our provision for credit losses, our revenues, net income and assets.

A client’s fraud could cause us to suffer material losses. A client could defraud us by, among other things:

- directing the proceeds of collections of its accounts receivable to bank accounts other than our established lockboxes;
- failing to accurately record accounts receivable aging;

- overstating or falsifying records showing accounts receivable or inventory;

- providing inaccurate reporting of other financial information;

- falsifying purchase orders to suppliers and from customers or;

- stealing inventory that we have purchased.
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As of December 31, 2012, clients that represent 5% or more of our accounts receivable and purchase order portfolio include a food service client in Missouri that
accounts for 12.7%, an IT consulting firm in Maryland which accounts for 10.6%, a paperboard manufacturing company in Michigan that accounts for 8.3%, an
environmental consulting firm in Washington that accounts for 6.9% and a trucking company in Virginia that accounts for 5.3%. A client’s fraud could cause us to
suffer material losses.

We may be unable to recognize or act upon an operational or financial problem with a client in a timely fashion so as to prevent a credit loss of purchased
accounts receivable from that client or purchase order advances to that client. Our clients may experience operational or financial problems that, if not timely
addressed by us, could result in a substantial impairment or loss of the value of our purchased accounts receivable or collateral underlying our purchase order
advances. We may fail to identify problems because our client did not report them in a timely manner or, even if the client did report the problem, we may fail to
address it quickly enough or at all. As a result, we could suffer credit losses, which could have a material adverse effect on our revenues, net income and results of
operations.

The security interest that we have in our clients’ assets may not be sufficient to protect us from a partial or complete loss if we are required to foreclose. While we
are secured by a lien on specified collateral of the client, there is no assurance that the collateral will protect us from suffering a partial or complete loss if we move to
foreclose on the collateral. The collateral is primarily the purchased accounts receivable for factoring transactions and inventory for purchase order transactions.
Factors that could reduce the value of the collateral that we have a security interest in include among other things:

* problems with the client’s underlying product or services which result in greater than anticipated returns or disputed accounts;
« unrecorded liabilities such as rebates, warranties or offsets;

« the disruption or bankruptcy of key customers who are responsible for material amounts of the accounts receivable; and

« the client misrepresents, or does not keep adequate records of, important information concerning the accounts receivable.

Any one or more of the preceding factors could materially impair our ability to collect purchase order advances and all of the accounts receivable we may purchase
from a client.

Errors by or dishonesty of our employees could result in credit losses. We rely heavily on the performance and integrity of our employees in making our initial credit
decision with respect to our clients and on-going credit decisions on our clients’ customers. Because there is generally little or no publicly available information about
our clients or clients’ customers, we cannot independently confirm or verify the information our employees provide us for use in making our credit and funding
decisions. Errors by our employees in assembling, analyzing or recording information concerning our clients and clients’ customers could cause us to fund clients and
purchase accounts receivable that we would not otherwise fund or purchase. This could result in losses. Losses could also arise if any of our employees were
dishonest. A dishonest employee could collude with our clients to misrepresent the creditworthiness of a prospective client or client customers or to provide inaccurate
reports or invoices. If, based on an employee’s dishonesty, we may have funded a client and purchased accounts that were not credit worthy, this could result in our
suffering credit losses.

We may incur lender liability as a result of our funding activities. A number of judicial decisions have upheld the right of borrowers to sue lending institutions on the
basis of various evolving legal theories, collectively termed “lender liability.” Generally, lender liability is founded on the premise that a lender has either violated a
duty, whether implied or contractual, of good faith and fair dealing owed to the borrower or has assumed a degree of control over the borrower resulting in the creation
of a fiduciary duty owed to the borrower or its other creditors or shareholders. We may be subject to allegations of lender liability if it were determined that our
advances were in fact loans and the relationship between Anchor and a client was that of lender and borrower rather than purchaser and seller. We cannot assure you
that these claims will not arise or that we will not be subject to significant liability if a claim of this type did arise.
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We may incur liability under state usury laws or other state laws and regulations if any of our funding arrangements are deemed to be loans or financing
transactions instead of a true purchase of accounts receivable. Various state laws and regulations limit the interest rates, fees and other charges lenders are allowed to
charge their borrowers. If any of the factoring transactions entered into by us are deemed to be loans or financing transactions instead of a true purchase of accounts
receivable, such laws and regulations may become applicable to us and could limit the interest rates, fees and other charges we are able to charge our customers and
may further subject us to any penalties under such state laws and regulations. This could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, liquidity
and results of operations.

We are in a highly competitive business and may not be able to take advantage of attractive funding opportunities. The factoring and purchase order finance
industries are highly competitive. We have competitors who offer the same types of services to small privately owned businesses that are our target clients. Our
competitors include a variety of:

* specialty and commercial finance companies; and
+ national and regional banks that have factoring and purchase order divisions or subsidiaries.

Some of our competitors have greater financial, technical, marketing and other resources than we do. They also have greater access to capital than we do and at a lower
cost than is available to us. Furthermore, we would expect to face increased price competition if other factors seek to expand within or enter our target markets.
Increased competition could cause us to reduce our pricing and advance greater amounts as a percentage of a client’s eligible accounts receivable. Even with these
changes, in an increasingly competitive market, we may not be able to attract and retain new clients. If we cannot engage new clients, our net income could suffer, and
our financial performance and condition could be significantly impaired.

Our information and computer processing systems are critical to the operations of our business and any failure could cause significant problems. Our information
technology systems, located at our Charlotte, North Carolina headquarters, are essential for data exchange and operational communications to service our clients. Any
interruption, impairment or loss of data integrity or malfunction of these systems could severely hamper our business and could require that we commit significant
additional capital and management resources to rectify the problem.

The loss of any of our key personnel could harm our business. Our future financial performance will depend to a significant extent on our ability to motivate and
retain key management personnel. Competition for qualified management personnel is intense and in the event we experience turnover in our senior management
positions, we cannot assure you that we will be able to recruit suitable replacements. We must also successfully integrate all new management and other key positions
within our organization to achieve our operating objectives. Even if we are successful, turnover in key management positions may temporarily harm our financial
performance and results of operations until new management becomes familiar with our business. At present, we do not maintain key-man life insurance on any of our
executive officers, although we entered into employment contracts with each of Morry F. Rubin, Chief Executive Officer, and Brad Bernstein, President. Our Board of
Directors is responsible for approval of all future employment contracts with our executive officers. We can provide no assurances that said future employment
contracts and/or their current compensation is or will be on commercially reasonable terms to us in order to retain our key personnel. The loss of any of our key
personnel could harm our business.

Lack of Committees. Currently we have no audit, compensation, nominating or other committees of the board. In the future, we may establish committees at such
time as the board deems it to be in the best interest of our stockholders. We can provide no assurances that our lack of committees will not continue in future operating
periods. Since we have no audit committee composed solely of independent directors, as required by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, as amended, our board of
directors has all the responsibilities of the audit committee.

We are continually subject to the risk of new regulation, which could harm our business and/or operating results. Congress and/or various state legislatures may
pass new regulations governing the financial services industry. The enactment of any such new laws or regulations may negatively impact our business, financial
condition and/or our financial results.

Control of the Company. Our executive officers, directors and principal stockholders beneficially own more than 50% of the voting control of our capital stock. As a
result, such persons, in the event that they act in concert, will have the ability to affect the election of all of our directors and the outcome of all issues submitted to our
stockholders. Such concentration of ownership could limit the price that certain investors might be willing to pay in the future for shares of Common Stock, and could
have the effect of making it more difficult for a third party to acquire, or of discouraging a third party from attempting to acquire, control of us. See “Item 12.”
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Risks associated with the development of the Company’s management information and internal control systems. Our data processing, accounting and analysis
capabilities are important components of our business. As we make acquisitions, we will convert certain systems of the acquired companies to our systems. These
conversions and the continued development and installation of such systems involve the risk of unanticipated complications and expenses. We can provide no
assurances that we will be successful in this regard.

We have no established public market for our Securities. Our outstanding Common Stock and Series 1 Convertible Preferred Stock (collectively the “Securities”) do
not have an established trading market in the Over-the-Counter Market or on the OTC Bulletin Board, although our Common Stock has been quoted on the OTC
Bulletin Board under the symbol “AFNG.” Trading in our Common Stock has been sporadic since it began in December 2007. The availability for sale of restricted
securities pursuant to Rule 144 or otherwise could adversely affect the market for our Common Stock, if any. We can provide no assurances that an established public
market will ever develop or be sustained for our common stock in the future. Further, we do not anticipate a public market will ever develop for our Series 1
Convertible Preferred Stock.

The price of our Common Stock may fluctuate significantly. The market price for our Common Stock, if any, can fluctuate as a result of a variety of factors,
including the factors listed above, many of which are beyond our control. These factors include: actual or anticipated variations in quarterly operating results;
announcements of new services by our competitors or us; announcements relating to strategic relationships or acquisitions; changes in financial estimates or other
statements by securities analysts; and other changes in general economic conditions. Because of this, we may fail to meet or exceed the expectations of our
shareholders or others, and the market price for our Common Stock could fluctuate as a result.

Our Common Stock is considered to be a “penny stock” and, as such, the market for our Common Stock, should one develop, may be further limited by certain
Commission rules applicable to penny stocks. To the extent the price of our Common Stock remains below $5.00 per share or we have net tangible assets of
$2,000,000 or less, our common shares will be subject to certain “penny stock” rules promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission. Those rules impose
certain sales practice requirements on brokers who sell penny stock to persons other than established customers and accredited investors (generally institutions with
assets in excess of $5,000,000 or individuals with net worth in excess of $1,000,000). For transactions covered by the penny stock rules, the broker must make a
special suitability determination for the purchaser and receive the purchaser’s written consent to the transaction prior to the sale. Furthermore, the penny stock rules
generally require, among other things, that brokers engaged in secondary trading of penny stocks provide customers with written disclosure documents, monthly
statements of the market value of penny stocks, disclosure of the bid and asked prices and disclosure of the compensation to the brokerage firm and disclosure of the
sales person working for the brokerage firm. These rules and regulations adversely affect the ability of brokers to sell our common shares in the public market should
one develop and they limit the liquidity of our Shares.

An investment in the Company is subject to dilution. We may require substantial additional financing in order to achieve our business objectives. The Company may
generate such financing through the sale of securities (including potentially to the owners of businesses we acquire) that would dilute the ownership of its existing
security holders. In subsequent rounds of financing, the Company will likely issue securities that will have rights, preferences or privileges senior to our outstanding
securities and that will include financial and other covenants that will restrict the Company’s flexibility.

We have never declared or paid cash dividends on our common stock and we do not anticipate paying any cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable
future. We currently intend to retain future earnings, if any, to fund the development and growth of our business. Any future determination to pay cash dividends will
be dependent upon our financial condition, operating results, capital requirements, applicable contractual restrictions and other such factors as our Board of Directors

may deem relevant.

THE FOREGOING RISK FACTORS DO NOT PURPORT TO BE A COMPLETE EXPLANATION OF THE RISKS INHERENT IN AN INVESTMENT IN THE
COMPANY.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None
Item 2. Properties

The Company has lease agreements for office space in Charlotte, NC, Boca Raton, FL and Medley, Florida. All lease agreements are with unrelated parties.
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The Company has two Charlotte leases for adjoining space that expire May 31, 2013 and the company plans to renew for another year. The monthly rent for the
combined space is approximately $2,340.

Beginning November 1, 2009, the company entered into a 24 month lease for office space in Boca Raton, FL, and on November 1, 2011 renewed for another two
years. The monthly rental is approximately $1,413.

Beginning November 12, 2012, the company entered into a six month lease for office space in Medley, FL, with an option to renew for twelve month terms. The
monthly rental is $800.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are not a party to any pending material legal proceedings except as described below. To our knowledge, no governmental authority is contemplating commencing a
legal proceeding in which we would be named as a party.

In April 2011, our former subsidiary, Brookridge Funding LLC (“Brookridge”) incurred a credit loss of approximately $650,000 due to what appears to be a fraud
committed by a Brookridge client (hereinafter referred to as a "Sherburne Account" client). Anchor’s interest in this loss is 80% or approximately $520,000.
Brookridge financed inventory purchased by this client who sold the inventory for the benefit of another company not funded by Brookridge resulting in the loss of
Brookridge’s collateral rights in the inventory. As a result, Brookridge recorded a charge of $650,000 for credit losses in April, 2011. As of December 31, 2012, the
Company has recouped a total of $177,000 of the $650,000 of credit losses. Anchor is currently pursuing all collection remedies and on October 22, 2011 filed a
complaint in the Superior Court of Stamford/Norwalk, Connecticut against the Administrators of the Estate of David Harvey (“Harvey”). Harvey was the owner of
Sherburne and the Company is pursuing its rights under the personal guarantee that Harvey provided. The Complaint is demanding principal of approximately
$485,000 plus interest and damages.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable
PART II
Item 5.Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities.

Our common stock is quoted on the OTC Electronic Bulletin Board under the symbol “AFNG.” The following table sets forth the range of high and low closing sale
prices of our Common Stock for our last two fiscal periods.

Quarters Ended High Low

March 31, 2011 $ 050 $ 0.20
June 30, 2011 $ 035 $ 0.15
September 30, 2011 $ 1.01 $ 0.30
December 31, 2011 $ 1.01 $ 0.50
March 31, 2012 $ 080 $ 0.15
June 30, 2012 $ 051 $ 0.05
September 30, 2012 $ 051 $ 0.30
December 31, 2012 $ 030 $ 0.30

All quotations reflect inter-dealer prices, without retail mark-up, markdown or commissions, and may not necessarily represent actual transactions.

As of February 14, 2013, there were 18,634,369 shares of Common Stock issued and outstanding, as well as the following derivative securities: (i) outstanding
options to purchase 2,830,000 shares of our Common Stock, (ii) outstanding warrants to purchase 1,342,500 shares of our Common Stock, and (iii) outstanding
376,387 shares of our Series 1 Preferred Stock which are convertible into 1,881,935 shares of our Common Stock.

In January 2007, we had an initial float of 525,555 shares which were issued as free trading shares by the Bankruptcy Court under Section 1145(a)(1) of the
Bankruptcy Code. Since then, our remaining outstanding equity securities have become eligible for sale pursuant to the requirements of Rule 144 of the Securities Act
of 1933, as amended. In this respect, shares of our common stock beneficially owned by a person for at least six months (as defined in Rule 144) are eligible for resale
under Rule 144 subject to the availability of current public information about us and, in the case of affiliated persons, subject to certain additional volume limitations,
manner of sale provisions and notice provisions. Pursuant to Rule 144(b)(1) of the Securities Act, our non-affiliates (who have been non-affiliates for at least three
months) may sell their common stock that they have held for one year (as defined in Rule 144) without compliance with the availability of current information.
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Holders of Record

As of December 31, 2012, there were 581 holders of record of shares of Common Stock and 68 holders of record of our Series 1 Preferred Stock. The Company's
Transfer Agent is Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company, 17 Battery Place, New York, NY 10004.

Dividend Policy

The holders of our Series 1 Preferred Stock were entitled to receive dividends from issuance in 2007 through December 31, 2009 as more fully described below. We
have not paid or declared any cash dividends on our Common Stock. We currently intend to retain any earnings for future growth and, therefore, do not expect to pay
cash dividends on our Common Stock in the foreseeable future.

Cumulative annual dividends are payable in shares of Series 1 Preferred Stock or, in certain instances in cash, at an annual rate of 8% ($.40 per share of Series 1
Preferred Stock), on December 31 of each year commencing December 31, 2007. Dividends payable on outstanding Shares of Series 1 Preferred Stock began to accrue
on the date of each closing and ceased to accrue and accumulate on the earlier of December 31, 2009 or the applicable Conversion Date (the “Final Dividend Payment
Date”). Thereafter, the holders of Series 1 Preferred Stock shall have the same dividend rights as holders of Common Stock of the Company, as if the Series 1
Preferred Stock has been fully converted into Common Stock. The dividend payable on December 31, 2007, December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2009 was declared
and paid through the issuance of additional shares of Series 1 Preferred Stock.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

For the year ended December 31, 2012, there were no sales of unregistered securities.
Recent Purchases of Securities
During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company had no repurchases of its Common Stock.
Item 6. Selected Financial Data
Not applicable.

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto appearing elsewhere in this Form 10-K. All
statements contained herein that are not historical facts, including, but not limited to, statements regarding anticipated future capital requirements, our future plan of
operations, our ability to obtain debt, equity or other financing, and our ability to generate cash from operations, are based on current expectations. These statements
are forward-looking in nature and involve a number of risks and uncertainties that may cause the Company’s actual results in future periods to differ materially from
forecasted results.

Forward-Looking_Statements

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 (the Act) provides a safe harbor for forward-looking statements made by or on behalf of our Company. Our
Company and its representatives may from time to time make written or verbal forward-looking statements, including statements contained in this report and other
Company filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission and in our reports to stockholders. Statements that relate to other than strictly historical facts, such as
statements about the Company's plans and strategies and expectations for future financial performance are forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Act.
Generally, the words “believe,” “expect,” “intend,” “estimate,” “anticipate,” “will” and other similar expressions identify forward-looking statements. The forward-
looking statements are and will be based on management's then current views and assumptions regarding future events and operating performance, and speak only as
of their dates. The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future
events or otherwise. See “Risk Factors” for a discussion of events and circumstances that could affect our financial performance or cause actual results to differ
materially from estimates contained in or underlying our forward-looking statements.

» <« ”
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Executive Overview

Our business objective is to create a well-recognized, national financial services firm for small businesses providing accounts receivable funding (factoring), purchase
order finance, outsourcing of accounts receivable management including collections and the risk of customer default and other specialty finance products including,
but not limited to, trade finance and government contract funding. For certain service businesses, Anchor also provides back office support, including payroll and
invoice processing services. We provide our services to clients nationwide and may expand our services internationally in the future. We plan to achieve our growth
objectives as described below through internal growth through a network of business development personnel and mass media marketing initiatives. Our plans also
include a combination of strategic and add-on acquisitions of other factoring and related specialty finance firms and other types of firms that serve small businesses in
the United States and Canada that could provide cross-selling opportunities. Our principal operations are located in Charlotte, North Carolina and we maintain an
executive office in Boca Raton, Florida, which includes its sales and marketing functions. We have a sales office in Medley, Florida which sells freight bill funding
services to transportation companies under our TruckerFunds.com trade name.

Results of Operations
Year Ended December 31, 2012 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2011

The following table compares the operating results for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011:

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 $ Change % Change
Finance revenues $ 2,526,626 $ 2,404,542 $ 122,084 5.1
Interest expense, net and commissions (469,364) (517,129) 47,765 9.2)
Net finance revenues 2,057,262 1,887,413 169,849 9.0
Provision for credit losses, net (41,797) (11,970) (29,827) 249.2
Finance revenues, net of interest expense and credit losses 2,015,465 1,875,443 140,022 7.5
Operating expenses 1,636,606 1,596,218 40,388 2.5
Net income from continuing operations before income taxes 378,859 279,225 99,634 35.7
Income tax provision - - - -
Income from continuing operations 378,859 279,225 99,634 35.7
Loss from discontinued operations - (4,000) 4,000 -
Net income $ 378,859 $ 275,225 $ 103,634 37.7

Finance revenues increased to $2,526,626 for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to $2,404,542 for the year ended December 31, 2011, a 5.1%
increase. Finance revenues increased due to an increase in business from existing clients and new clients. As of December 31, 2012, the Company had 102 active
clients compared to 95 clients as of December 31, 2011.

The Company had net interest expense of $469,364 for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to net interest expense of $517,129 for the year ended December
31, 2011. This change is primarily the result of the Company refinancing its credit facility with a commercial bank at a lower cost in November, 2011.

The Company incurred net credit losses of $41,797 for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to net credit losses of $11,970 for year ended December 31, 2011.
The increase in net credit losses for the period is primarily related to a client that ceased operations. The client’s customers are claiming and taking credits against
certain invoices that Anchor purchased. While the Company has reserved for amounts it estimates are uncollectible, it continues to examine and will pursue other
collection remedies. Such credit losses are a risk factor in Anchor’s business.

Operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2012 were $1,636,606 compared to $1,596,218 for the year ended December 31, 2011, a 2.5% increase. This
$40,388 increase is partially attributable to a $29,000 increase in advertising expenses as the company increased its online marketing efforts.

The combination of increased net finance revenues and reduced interest expense resulted in net income for the year ended December 31, 2012 of $378,859 compared
to a net income of $275,225 for the year ended December 31, 2011.
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Client Accounts

As of December 31, 2012, we have five clients that account for an aggregate of approximately 43.8% of our accounts receivable portfolio and approximately 28.9% of
our revenues for the year ended December 31, 2012. The transactions and balances with these clients as of and for the year ended December 31, 2012 are summarized
below:

Percentage of

Accounts Percentage of
Receivable Revenues for
Portfolio the Twelve
As of Months Ended
December 31, December 31,
Entity 2012 2012

Food Service Company in Missouri 12.7% 7.3%
IT Consultant in Maryland 10.6% 7.6%
Paperboard Company in Michigan 8.3% 6.2%
Environmental Consultant in Washington 6.9% 3.7%
Trucking Company in Virginia 5.3% 4.1%
43.8% 28.9%

A client’s fraud could cause us to suffer material losses. See “Item 1A.”
Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash Flow Summary

Cash Flows from Continuing Operating Activities

Net cash used in operating activities was $229,521 for the year ended December 31, 2012 and was primarily due to cash used by operating assets, primarily to
purchase accounts receivable. Cash used by continuing operating assets and liabilities was primarily due to an increase of $751,256 in retained interest in accounts
receivable. Increases and decreases in prepaid expenses, accounts payable, accrued payroll and accrued expenses were primarily the result of timing of payments and
receipts.

Net cash provided by operating activities was $1,632,075 for the year ended December 31, 2011 and was primarily due to cash provided by operating assets, primarily
reductions in purchased accounts receivable. Cash provided by continuing operating assets and liabilities was primarily due to a decrease of $1,298,827 in retained
interest in accounts receivable. Increases and decreases in prepaid expenses, accounts payable, accrued payroll and accrued expenses were primarily the result of
timing of payments and receipts.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

For the year ended December 31, 2012, net cash used in investing activities was $17,031 for the purchase of property and equipment.
For the year ended December 31, 2011, net cash used in investing activities was $18,595 for the purchase of property and equipment.
Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities was $550,420 for the year ended December 31, 2012. This was the result of $550,420 of proceeds from a bank under the
Company’s Rediscount Credit Facility.

Net cash used by financing activities was $1,470,229 for the year ended December 31, 2011. This was the result of $1,180,229 of payments to a bank under the
Company’s Rediscount Credit Facility and $290,000 of payments to another lender.

Capital Resources

We have the availability of a $10 million Rediscount Credit Facility with a Commercial Bank. The maximum amount that can be borrowed under the facility is $10
million and the Bank advances up to 80% of Anchor’s advances to its clients. The agreement’s anniversary date is November 30, 2013 and automatically renews each
year for an additional year provided that the Company has not provided 60 days’ notice to the financial institution in advance of the anniversary date. This facility is
secured by our assets, and contains certain standard covenants, representations and warranties for loans of this type. In the event that we fail to comply with the
covenant(s) and the lender does not waive such non-compliance, we could be in default of our credit facility, which could subject us to penalty rates of interest and
accelerate the maturity of the outstanding balances. The Credit Agreement contains standard representations, warranties and events of default for facilities of this
type. Occurrences of an event of default under our credit facility allow the lender to accelerate the payment of the loans and/or terminate the commitments to lend, in
addition to other legal remedies, including foreclosure on collateral. In the event we are not able to maintain adequate credit facilities for our factoring, purchase order
financing and acquisition needs on commercially reasonable terms, our ability to operate our business and complete one or more acquisitions would be significantly
impacted and our financial condition and results of operations could suffer. We can provide no assurances that replacement facilities will be obtained by us on terms
satisfactory to us, if at all.
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On June 5, 2012, upon approval of the Board, Anchor entered into two Promissory Notes totaling $400,000, one with Morry Rubin and the other with a major
shareholder of the company. Each Promissory Note was for $200,000, had a 90 day term, and earned interest (payable monthly) at 15% per annum. The Promissory
Notes were to assist Anchor in providing factoring and purchase order funding facilities to some of its clients. The Promissory Notes were subordinate to and
supplemented Anchor's $10 Million Rediscount Credit Facility with a Commercial Bank. Both promissory notes were paid on September 5, 2012. Anchor paid
$15,123 of interest on these notes for the year ended December 31, 2012.

On May 25, 2012, Anchor entered into a Participation Agreement with a funding company (Participant) whereby it sold an interest in one of its accounts so that it
could accommodate the accounts funding requirements and also mitigate some of Anchor’s credit exposure in the account. Anchor sold a 50% interest in the account
to the Participant. Provided Anchor follows a standard of care as agreed to in the Participation Agreement, any credit losses, if they occur, would be shared equally
between Anchor and the Participant. The Participant’s fee is paid monthly and is charged at the rate of 21% per annum of the average outstanding balance due to the
Participant. The fee paid to the Participant was $25,020 for the year ended December 31, 2012, and is included in interest expense - financial institutions. Anchor
owed the Participant $-0- as of December 31, 2012.

On April 26, 2011, upon approval of the Board, Anchor entered into a Promissory Note for up to $2 million from MGM Funding, LLC (MGM). Morry Rubin is the
managing member of MGM. The money to be borrowed under the note was subordinate to Anchor’s accounts receivable credit facility with a senior lender, which
required funds employed to be no less than $5,000,000 before Anchor borrowed funds from MGM. The Promissory Note was to assist Anchor in providing factoring
and purchase order funding facilities to some of its clients and it replaced an earlier agreement between the parties. This facility was to supplement Anchor's $10
Million Rediscount Credit Facility with a Commercial Bank. The MGM Promissory Note was a demand note payable together with interest at the rate of 11% per
annum. If mutually agreed upon in writing by Anchor and MGM, and if Anchor's purchase order fundings exceeded $1 Million, then interest could accrue on the
portion of the unpaid balance of this Note that is funding purchase order advances that are in excess of $1 Million at a rate equal to twenty percent (20%) per annum.
This note was paid in full as of December 31, 2011 and is no longer available to Anchor. Anchor paid $0 and $16,669 of interest to MGM for the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Based on our current cash position and our Credit Facilities, we believe we can meet our cash needs for the next 12 to 15 months and support our anticipated organic
growth. In the event we acquire another company, we may need additional equity or subordinated debt financing and/or a new credit facility to complete the
transaction and our daily cash needs and liquidity could change based on the needs of the combined companies. At that time, in the event we are not able to obtain
adequate new facilities and/or financing to complete the acquisition (if needed) and to operate the combined companies financing needs on commercially reasonable
terms, our ability to operate and expand our business would be significantly impacted and our financial condition and results of operations could suffer.

Summary of Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
Estimates — The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires

management to make estimates that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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Revenue Recognition — The Company charges fees to its customers in one of two ways as follows:

1) Fixed Transaction Fee. Fixed transaction fees are a fixed percentage of the purchased invoice and purchase order advance. This percentage
does not change from the date the purchased invoice is funded until the date the purchased invoice is collected.

2) Variable Transaction Fee. Variable transaction fees are variable based on the length of time the purchased invoice and purchase order advance
is outstanding. As specified in its contract with the client, the Company charges variable increasing percentages of the purchased invoice or purchase order
advance as time elapses from the purchase date to the collection date.

For both Fixed and Variable Transaction fees, the Company recognizes revenue by using one of two methods depending on the type of customer. For new customers
the Company recognizes revenue using the cost recovery method. For established customers the Company recognizes revenue using the accrual method.

Under the cost recovery method, all revenue is recognized upon collection of the entire amount of purchased accounts receivable.

The Company considers new customers to be accounts whose initial funding has been within the last three months or less. Management believes it needs three months
of history to reasonably estimate a customer’s collection period and accrued revenues. If three months of history has a limited number of transactions, the cost
recovery method will continue to be used until a reasonable revenue estimate can be made based on additional history. Once the Company obtains sufficient historical
experience, it will begin using the accrual method to recognize revenue.

For established customers the Company uses the accrual method of accounting. The Company applies this method by multiplying the historical yield, for each
customer, times the amount advanced on each purchased invoice outstanding for that customer, times the portion of a year that the advance is outstanding. The
customers’ historical yield is based on the Company’s last six months of experience with the customer along with the Company’s experience in the customer’s
industry, if applicable.

The amounts recorded as revenue under the accrual method described above are estimates. As purchased invoices and purchase order advances are collected, the
Company records the appropriate adjustments to record the actual revenue earned on each purchased invoice and purchase order advance. Adjustments from the
estimated revenue to the actual revenue have not been material.

Retained Interest in Purchased Accounts Receivable — Retained interest in purchased accounts receivable represents the gross amount of invoices purchased and
advances on purchase orders from clients less amounts maintained in a reserve account. For factoring transactions, the Company purchases a customer’s accounts
receivable and advances them a percentage of the invoice total. The difference between the purchase price and amount advanced is maintained in a reserve
account. The reserve account is used to offset any potential losses the Company may have related to the purchased accounts receivable. For purchase order
transactions the company advances and pays for 100% of the product’s cost.

The Company’s factoring and security agreements with their customers include various recourse provisions requiring the customers to repurchase accounts receivable
if certain conditions, as defined in the factoring and security agreement, are met.

Senior management reviews the status of uncollected purchased accounts receivable and purchase order advances monthly to determine if any are uncollectible. The
Company has a security interest in the accounts receivable and inventory purchased and, on a case-by-case basis, may have additional collateral. The Company files
security interests in the property securing their advances. Access to this collateral is dependent upon the laws and regulations in each state where the security interest
is filed. Additionally, the Company has varying types of personal guarantees from their customers relating to the purchased accounts receivable and purchase order
advances.

Management considered approximately $80,500 of their December 31, 2012 and $17,500 of their December 31, 2011 retained interest in purchased accounts
receivable to be uncollectible.

Management believes the fair value of the retained interest in purchased accounts receivable approximates its recorded value because of the relatively short-term
nature of the purchased receivable and the fact that the majority of these invoices have been subsequently collected.
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Advertising Costs — The Company charges advertising costs to expense as incurred. Total advertising costs were approximately $267,000 and $231,000 for the years
ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Earnings per Share (EPS) — Basic net income per share is computed by dividing the net income for the period by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the period. Dilutive earnings per share include the potential impact of dilutive securities, such as convertible preferred stock, stock options and
stock warrants. The dilutive effect of stock options and warrants is computed using the treasury stock method, which assumes the repurchase of common shares at the
average market price.

Under the treasury stock method, options and warrants will have a dilutive effect when the average price of common stock during the period exceeds the exercise price
of options or warrants.

The following tables present a reconciliation of the components used to derive basic and diluted EPS for the periods indicated:

2012 2011
(Denominator) (Denominator)
Weighted- Per Weighted- Per

(Numerator) Average Share (Numerator) Average Share

Net Income Shares Amount Net Income Shares Amount
Year Ended December 31,
Basic EPS $ 378,859 18,634,369 $ 002 $ 275,225 18,634,369 $ 0.01
Effect of Dilutive Securities — Options and

Convertible Preferred Stock - 2,129,263 - - 1,881,763 -

Diluted EPS $ 378,859 20,763,632 $ 002 $ 275,225 20,516,132 $ 0.01

Stock Based Compensation - The fair value of transactions in which the Company exchanges its equity instruments for employee services (share-based payment
transactions) is recognized as an expense in the financial statements as services are performed.

Compensation expense is determined by reference to the fair value of an award on the date of grant and is amortized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period.
We have elected to use the Black-Scholes-Merton (BSM) pricing model to determine the fair value of all stock option awards.

See Note 8 to our financial statements for the impact on the operating results for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments — The carrying value of cash equivalents, retained interest in purchased accounts receivable, due to financial institution,
accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximates their fair value.

Cash and Cash Equivalents — Cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of highly liquid cash investment funds with original maturities of three months or less
when acquired.

Income Taxes — Effective January 31, 2007, the Company became a “C” corporation for income tax purposes. In a “C” corporation income taxes are provided for the
tax effects of transactions reported in the financial statements plus deferred income taxes related to the differences between financial statement and taxable income.

The primary differences between financial statement and taxable income for the Company are as follows:
Expense related to the issuance of equity instruments
Use of the reserve method of accounting for bad debts

Net operating loss carryforwards.

The deferred tax asset represents the future tax return consequences of utilizing these items. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation reserve, when
management is uncertain if the net deferred tax assets will ever be realized.
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The Company applied the provisions of ASC 740-10-50, “Accounting For Uncertainty In Income Taxes”, which provides clarification related to the process associated
with accounting for uncertain tax positions recognized in our financial statements. The Company applied this guidance to all its tax positions, including tax positions
taken and those expected to be taken, under the transition provision of the interpretation. For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company concluded
that it had no material uncertain tax positions.

The Company classifies interest accrued on unrecognized tax benefits with interest expense. Penalties accrued on unrecognized tax benefits are classified with
operating expenses.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements —

In May 2011, the FASB issued an update to Topic 820—Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures of the Accounting Standards Codification. This update provides
guidance on how fair value accounting should be applied where its use is already required or permitted by other standards. The guidance does not extend the use of fair
value accounting. We adopted this guidance effective January 1, 2012, as required, and the adoption did not have a significant impact to our consolidated financial
statements.

In June 2011, the FASB issued an update to Topic 220—Comprehensive Income of the Accounting Standards Codification. The update is intended to increase the
prominence of other comprehensive income in the financial statements. The guidance requires that we present components of comprehensive income in either one
continuous or two separate, but consecutive, financial statements and no longer permits the presentation of comprehensive income in the Consolidated Statement of
Shareholders’ Equity. We adopted this new guidance effective January 1, 2012, as required. The adoption did not have a significant impact on our consolidated
financial statements.

The FASB amended the Comprehensive Income topic of the ASC in February 2013. The amendment addresses reporting of amounts reclassified out of accumulated
other comprehensive income. Specifically, the amendment does not change the current requirements for reporting net income or other comprehensive income in
financial statements. However, the amendment does require an entity to provide information about the amounts reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive
income by component. In addition, in certain circumstances an entity is required to present, either on the face of the statement where net income is presented or in the
notes, significant amounts reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive income by the respective line items of net income. The amendment will be effective
for the Company on a prospective basis for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2012. Early adoption is permitted. The Company does not expect these
amendments to have a material effect on its financial statements.

Other accounting standards that have been issued or proposed by the FASB or other standards-setting bodies are not expected to have a material impact in the
Company’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.
Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in market rates and prices, such as interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates and commodity prices.
Our primary exposure to market risk is interest rate risk associated with our short term money market investments. The Company does not have any financial

instruments held for trading or other speculative purposes and does not invest in derivative financial instruments, interest rate swaps or other investments that alter
interest rate exposure. The Company does not have any credit facilities with variable interest rates.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

Consolidated Financial Statements

The report of the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, Consolidated Financial Statements and Schedules are set forth beginning on the following page.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of
Anchor Funding Services, Inc.
Charlotte, NC

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Anchor Funding Services, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the “Company™) as of December 31, 2012 and
2011, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the years then ended. These consolidated financial statements are
the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have,
nor were we engaged to perform an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as
a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Company as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

/S/ Scott and Company LL.C

Columbia, South Carolina
March 27, 2013

F-2




ANCHOR FUNDING SERVICES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31,

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash
Retained interest in purchased accounts receivable, net
Earned but uncollected fee income
Prepaid expenses and other
Total current assets

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net

SECURITY DEPOSITS

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Due to financial institution
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related taxes
Accrued expenses
Collected but unearned fee income
Total current liabilities

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK, net of issuance costs of
$1,209,383

COMMON STOCK

ADDITIONAL PAID IN CAPITAL

ACCUMULATED DEFICIT

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements.

ASSETS

2012 2011
$ 610,439 $ 306,571
7,019,463 6,331,156
168,805 157,070
100,998 70,924
7,899,705 6,865,721
14,257 17,030
6,023 5,486

$ 7919985 $ 6,888,237
$ 4977763 $ 4,427,343
86,772 45,376
69,338 60,918
59,252 29,609
28,642 36,939
5,221,767 4,600,185
671,409 671,409
1,863 1,863
7,496,693 7,465,386
(5,471,747) (5,850,606)
2,698,218 2,288,052
$ 7919985 $ 6,888,237




FINANCE REVENUES
INTEREST EXPENSE - financial institution
INTEREST EXPENSE - related parties

NET FINANCE REVENUES

ANCHOR FUNDING SERVICES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

PROVISION FOR CREDIT LOSSES, net of recoveries

FINANCE REVENUES, NET OF INTEREST EXPENSE

AND CREDIT LOSSES

OPERATING EXPENSES

INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEFORE

INCOME TAXES

INCOME TAXES

INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

LOSS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

NET INCOME

BASIC EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE:
INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
LOSS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO COMMON SHAREHOLDERS

DILUTED EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE:
INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
LOSS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO COMMON SHAREHOLDERS

WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF SHARES OUTSTANDING

Basic
Dilutive

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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For the years ended

December 31,
2012 2011
2,526,626 $ 2,404,542
(454,241) (500,460)
(15,123) (16,669)
2,057,262 1,887,413
(41,797) (11,970)
2,015,465 1,875,443
(1,636,606) (1,596,218)
378,859 279,225
378,859 279,225
- (4,000)
378,859 $ 275,225
002 $ 0.01
002 $ 0.01
002 $ 0.01
0.02 $ 0.01
18,634,369 18,634,369
20,763,632 20,516,132




ANCHOR FUNDING SERVICES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

Preferred Common Additional Accumulated
Stock Stock Paid in Capital Deficit Total
Balance, January 1, 2011 $ 671,409 $ 1,863 $ 7,461,779 $ (6,125,831) $ 2,009,220
Provision for compensation expense related to issued stock options - - 4,738 - 4,738
Benefit for compensation expense related to expired stock options - - (1,131) - (1,131)
Net income, year ended December 31, 2011 - - - 275,225 275,225
Balance, December 31, 2011 671,409 1,863 7,465,386 (5,850,606) 2,288,052
Provision for compensation expense related to issued stock options - - 10,229 - 10,229
Provision for compensation expense related to issued warrants - - 21,078 - 21,078
Net income, year ended December 31, 2012 - - - 378,859 378,859
Balance, December 31, 2012 $ 671,409 $ 1,863 $ 7,496,693 $ (5,471,747) $ 2,698,218

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements.




ANCHOR FUNDING SERVICES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the twelve months ended December 31,

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 2012 2011
Net income $ 378,859 $ 275,225
Loss from discontinued operations - 4,000

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
(used in) provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 19,804 20,563
Compensation expense related to issuance of stock options and warrants 31,307 3,607
Allowance for uncollectible accounts 62,949 11,970
Decrease (increase) in retained interest in purchased
accounts receivable (751,256) 1,298,827
Decrease (increase) in earned but uncollected (11,735) 45,998
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses and other (30,074) 29,706
Increase in security deposits (537) -
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 41,396 (13,010)
Increase in accrued payroll and related taxes 8,420 5,363
Decrease in collected but not earned (8,297) (2,681)
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses 29,643 (43,493)
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities - continuing operations (229,521) 1,636,075
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities - discontinued operations - (4,000)
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities (229,521) 1,632,075

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property and equipment (17,031) (18,595)
Net cash used in investing activities (17,031) (18,595)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from (payments to) financial institution, net 550,420 (1,180,229)
Payments to lender - (290,000)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 550,420 (1,470,229)
INCREASE IN CASH 303,868 143,251
CASH, beginning of period 306,571 163,320
CASH, end of period $ 610,439 $ 306,571

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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ANCHOR FUNDING SERVICES, INC
Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 and 2011

1. BACKGROUND AND DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS:

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Anchor Funding Services, Inc. (formerly BTHC XI, Inc.) and its wholly owned subsidiary, Anchor
Funding Services, LLC (“Anchor” or the “Company”). On October 6, 2010, we completed the rescission of our acquisition of certain assets of Brookridge Funding,
LLC that occurred on December 7, 2009. On October 6, 2010, the Minority members of our 80% owned subsidiary Brookridge Funding Services, LLC (“Brookridge”)
purchased Anchor’s interest in Brookridge at book value of approximately $783,000. The consolidated statements of operations and the consolidated statements of
cash flows reflect the historical operations of Brookridge as discontinued operations. Accordingly, we have generally presented the notes to our consolidated financial
statements on the basis of continuing operations. In addition, unless stated otherwise, any reference to income statement items in these consolidated financial
statements refers to results from continuing operations.

Anchor Funding Services, Inc. is a Delaware corporation. Anchor Funding Services, Inc. has no operations; substantially all operations of the Company are the
responsibility of Anchor Funding Services, LLC.

Anchor Funding Services, LLC is a North Carolina limited liability company. Anchor Funding Services, LLC was formed for the purpose of providing factoring and
back office services to businesses located throughout the United States of America.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

Principles of Consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Anchor Funding Services, Inc. and, its wholly owned
subsidiary, Anchor Funding Services, LLC (continuing operations). Anchor’s former 80% interest in Brookridge Funding Services, LLC is reflected in the
consolidated statements of operations and the consolidated statements of cash flows as discontinued operations.

Estimates — The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires
management to make estimates that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition — The Company charges fees to its customers in one of two ways as follows:

1) Fixed Transaction Fee. Fixed transaction fees are a fixed percentage of the purchased invoice and purchase order advance. This percentage does not change
from the date the purchased invoice is funded until the date the purchased invoice is collected.

2) Variable Transaction Fee. Variable transaction fees are variable based on the length of time the purchased invoice and purchase order advance is
outstanding. As specified in its contract with the client, the Company charges variable increasing percentages of the purchased invoice or purchase order
advance as time elapses from the purchase date to the collection date.

For both Fixed and Variable Transaction fees, the Company recognizes revenue by using one of two methods depending on the type of customer. For new customers
the Company recognizes revenue using the cost recovery method. For established customers the Company recognizes revenue using the accrual method.

Under the cost recovery method, all revenue is recognized upon collection of the entire amount of purchased accounts receivable.

The Company considers new customers to be accounts whose initial funding has been within the last three months or less. Management believes it needs three months
of history to reasonably estimate a customer’s collection period and accrued revenues. If three months of history has a limited number of transactions, the cost
recovery method will continue to be used until a reasonable revenue estimate can be made based on additional history. Once the Company obtains sufficient historical
experience, it will begin using the accrual method to recognize revenue.
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For established customers the Company uses the accrual method of accounting. The Company applies this method by multiplying the historical yield, for each
customer, times the amount advanced on each purchased invoice outstanding for that customer, times the portion of a year that the advance is outstanding. The
customers’ historical yield is based on the Company’s last six months of experience with the customer along with the Company’s experience in the customer’s
industry, if applicable.

The amounts recorded as revenue under the accrual method described above are estimates. As purchased invoices and purchase order advances are collected, the
Company records the appropriate adjustments to record the actual revenue earned on each purchased invoice and purchase order advance. Adjustments from the
estimated revenue to the actual revenue have not been material.

Retained Interest in Purchased Accounts Receivable — Retained interest in purchased accounts receivable represents the gross amount of invoices purchased and
advances on purchase orders from clients less amounts maintained in a reserve account. For factoring transactions, the Company purchases a customer’s accounts
receivable and advances them a percentage of the invoice total. The difference between the purchase price and amount advanced is maintained in a reserve
account. The reserve account is used to offset any potential losses the Company may have related to the purchased accounts receivable. For purchase order
transactions the company advances and pays for 100% of the product’s cost.

The Company’s factoring and security agreements with their customers include various recourse provisions requiring the customers to repurchase accounts receivable
if certain conditions, as defined in the factoring and security agreement, are met.

Senior management reviews the status of uncollected purchased accounts receivable and purchase order advances monthly to determine if any are uncollectible. The
Company has a security interest in the accounts receivable and inventory purchased and, on a case-by-case basis, may have additional collateral. The Company files
security interests in the property securing their advances. Access to this collateral is dependent upon the laws and regulations in each state where the security interest
is filed. Additionally, the Company has varying types of personal guarantees from their customers relating to the purchased accounts receivable and purchase order
advances.

Management considered approximately $80,449 of their December 31, 2012 and $17,500 of their December 31, 2011 retained interest in purchased accounts
receivable to be uncollectible.

Management believes the fair value of the retained interest in purchased accounts receivable approximates its recorded value because of the relatively short-term
nature of the purchased receivable and the fact that the majority of these invoices have been subsequently collected.

Advertising Costs — The Company charges advertising costs to expense as incurred. Total advertising costs were approximately $267,000 and $231,000 for the years
ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Earnings per Share (“EPS”) — Basic net income per share is computed by dividing the net income for the period by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the period. Dilutive earnings per share include the potential impact of dilutive securities, such as convertible preferred stock, stock options and
stock warrants. The dilutive effect of stock options and warrants is computed using the treasury stock method, which assumes the repurchase of common shares at the
average market price.

Under the treasury stock method, options and warrants will have a dilutive effect when the average price of common stock during the period exceeds the exercise price
of options or warrants.
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The following tables present a reconciliation of the components used to derive basic and diluted EPS for the periods indicated:

2012 2011
(Denominator) (Denominator)
Weighted- Per Weighted- Per

(Numerator) Average Share (Numerator) Average Share

Net Income Shares Amount Net Income Shares Amount
Year Ended December 31,
Basic EPS $ 378,859 18,634,369 $ 002 $ 275,225 18,634,369 $ 0.01
Effect of Dilutive Securities — Options and

Convertible Preferred Stock - 2,129,263 - - 1,881,763 -

Diluted EPS $ 378,859 20,763,632 $ 002 §$ 275,225 20,516,132 $ 0.01

Stock Based Compensation - The fair value of transactions in which the Company exchanges its equity instruments for employee services (share-based payment
transactions) is recognized as an expense in the financial statements as services are performed.

Compensation expense is determined by reference to the fair value of an award on the date of grant and is amortized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period.
We have elected to use the Black-Scholes-Merton (BSM) pricing model to determine the fair value of all stock option awards.

See Note 8 for the impact on the operating results for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments — The carrying value of cash equivalents, retained interest in purchased accounts receivable, due to financial institution,
accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximates their fair value.

Cash and Cash Equivalents — Cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of highly liquid cash investment funds with original maturities of three months or less
when acquired.

Income Taxes — Effective January 31, 2007, the Company became a “C” corporation for income tax purposes. In a “C” corporation income taxes are provided for the
tax effects of transactions reported in the consolidated financial statements plus deferred income taxes related to the differences between financial statement and
taxable income.

The primary differences between financial statement and taxable income for the Company are as follows:

Expenses related to the issuance of equity instruments
Use of the reserve method of accounting for bad debts
Net operating loss carryforwards.

The deferred tax asset represents the future tax return consequences of utilizing these items. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation reserve, when
management is uncertain if the net deferred tax assets will ever be realized.

The Company applied the provisions of ASC 740-10-50, “Accounting For Uncertainty In Income Taxes”, which provides clarification related to the process associated
with accounting for uncertain tax positions recognized in our financial statements. The Company applied this guidance to all its tax positions, including tax positions
taken and those expected to be taken, under the transition provision of the interpretation. For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company concluded
that it had no material uncertain tax positions.

The Company classifies interest accrued on unrecognized tax benefits with interest expense. Penalties accrued on unrecognized tax benefits are classified with
operating expenses.




Recent Accounting Pronouncements —

In May 2011, the FASB issued an update to Topic 820—Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures of the Accounting Standards Codification. This update provides
guidance on how fair value accounting should be applied where its use is already required or permitted by other standards. The guidance does not extend the use of fair
value accounting. We adopted this guidance effective January 1, 2012, as required, and the adoption did not have a significant impact to our consolidated financial
statements.

In June 2011, the FASB issued an update to Topic 220—Comprehensive Income of the Accounting Standards Codification. The update is intended to increase the
prominence of other comprehensive income in the financial statements. The guidance requires that we present components of comprehensive income in either one
continuous or two separate, but consecutive, financial statements and no longer permits the presentation of comprehensive income in the Consolidated Statement of
Shareholders’ Equity. We adopted this new guidance effective January 1, 2012, as required. The adoption did not have a significant impact on our consolidated
financial statements.

The FASB amended the Comprehensive Income topic of the ASC in February 2013. The amendment addresses reporting of amounts reclassified out of accumulated
other comprehensive income. Specifically, the amendment does not change the current requirements for reporting net income or other comprehensive income in
financial statements. However, the amendment does require an entity to provide information about the amounts reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive
income by component. In addition, in certain circumstances an entity is required to present, either on the face of the statement where net income is presented or in the
notes, significant amounts reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive income by the respective line items of net income. The amendment will be effective
for the Company on a prospective basis for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2012. Early adoption is permitted. The Company does not expect these
amendments to have a material effect on its financial statements.

Other accounting standards that have been issued or proposed by the FASB or other standards-setting bodies are not expected to have a material impact in the
Company’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

3. RETAINED INTEREST IN PURCHASED ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE:

Retained interest in purchased accounts receivable consists of the following:

December 31, December 31,
2012 2011
Purchased invoices $ 8,921,203 $ 7,655,933
Purchase order advances 21,156 105,000
Reserve account (1,842,447) (1,412,277)
Allowance for uncollectible invoices (80,449) (17,500)

$ 7,019,463 $ 6,331,156

Retained interest in purchased accounts receivable consists, excluding the allowance for uncollectible invoices, of United States companies in the following industries:

December 31, December 31,
2012 2011
Staffing $ 185,557 $ 548,031
Transportation 1,773,290 1,831,051
Service 4,528,668 3,969,574
Manufacturing 612,397 -

$ 7,099,912 $ 6,348,656

F-10




Adjustments to the allowance for uncollectible invoices were as follows:

For the years ending December 31,

2012 2011
Balance - beginning of year $ 17,500 $ 80,500
Provision for credit losses 62,949 11,970
Write-offs - (74,970)
Balance - end of year $ 80,449 $ 17,500

Total purchased invoices and purchase order advances were as follows:

For the years ending December 31,

2012 2011
Purchased invoices $ 95,875,787 $ 75,426,252
Purchase order advances 435,928 3,091,834

$ 96,311,715 $ 78,518,086

4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:

Property and equipment consist of the following:

Estimated
December 31, December 31,
Useful Lives 2012 2011

Furniture and fixtures 2-5 years $ 46,818 $ 44,731
Computers and software 3-7 years 187,505 172,561
234,323 217,292
Less: accumulated depreciation (220,066) (200,262)
$ 14,257  $ 17,030

Depreciation expense was $19,804 and $20,563 for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
5. DUE TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTION:

On November 8, 2011, Anchor entered into a Rediscount Credit Facility with a Commercial Bank that was effective November 30, 2011 and replaced its prior credit
facility. The maximum amount that can be borrowed under the facility is $10 million and the Bank will advance up to 80% of Anchor's advances to its clients. Anchor
pays interest on advances monthly at the 90 Day Libor Rate plus 6.25% and various other monthly fees as defined in the agreement. The agreement requires that
Anchor maintain at all times a ratio of debt to tangible net worth of not higher than four to one (4:1). As of December 31, 2012, the Company was in compliance. The
agreement contains customary representations and warranties, events of default and limitations, among other provisions. The agreement is collateralized by a first lien
on all Anchors' assets. The agreement’s anniversary date is November 30, 2013 and automatically renews each year for an additional year provided that the Company
has not provided 60 days’ notice to the Bank in advance of the anniversary date. This facility contains certain standard covenants, representations and warranties for
loans of this type. In the event that we fail to comply with the covenant(s) and the lender does not waive such non-compliance, we could be in default of our credit
facility, which could subject us to penalty rates of interest and accelerate the maturity of the outstanding balances in addition to other legal remedies, including
foreclosure on collateral. The Company’s President and CEO have provided validity guarantees to the Bank. Anchor owed this financial institution $4,977,763 and
$4,427,343 as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

On, November 30, 2009, Anchor Funding Services, LLC, entered into a $7 million senior Accounts Receivable (A/R) Credit Facility with a maximum amount of up to
$9 million with lender approval. This funding facility was based upon Anchor's submission and approval of eligible accounts receivable. This facility replaced
Anchor’s revolving credit facility from another financial institution. Anchor paid .5% for the first 30 days of the face value for each invoice funded and .016% for
each day thereafter until collected. In addition, interest on advances was paid monthly at the Prime Rate plus 2.0%. Anchor paid the financial institution various other
monthly fees as defined in the agreement. The agreement required that Anchor use $1,000,000 of its own funds first to finance its clients. The agreement contained
customary representations and warranties, events of default and limitations, among other provisions. The agreement was collateralized by a first lien on all Anchors’
assets. Borrowings on this agreement were partially guaranteed by the Company’s President and Chief Executive Officer. The partial guarantee was $250,000
each. On February 10, 2011, Anchor’s agreement with this financial institution was amended such that beginning February 10, 2011 Anchor would no longer pay
discount fees and Anchor would pay interest on advances at the Prime Rate plus 8.0% through November 30, 2011 and at the Prime Rate plus 9.0% thereafter. On
September 22, 2011, Anchor gave notice to this financial institution that it was electing not to renew the facility when it expired at the end of its current term on
November 30, 2011, so that it could enter into the Rediscount Credit Facility described above.
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6. CAPITAL STRUCTURE:
The Company’s capital structure consists of preferred and common stock as described below:

Preferred Stock — The Company is authorized to issue 10,000,000 shares of $.001 par value preferred stock. The Company’s Board of Directors determines the rights
and preferences of its preferred stock.

On January 31, 2007, the Company filed a Certificate of Designation with the Secretary of State of Delaware. Effective with this filing, 2,000,000 preferred shares
became Series 1 Convertible Preferred Stock. Series 1 Convertible Preferred Stock will rank senior to Common Stock.

Series 1 Convertible Preferred Stock is convertible into 5.1 shares of the Company’s Common Stock. The holder of the Series 1 Convertible Preferred Stock has the
option to convert the shares to Common Stock at any time. Upon conversion all accumulated and unpaid dividends will be paid as additional shares of Common
Stock.

The dividend rate on Series 1 Convertible Preferred Stock is 8%. Dividends are paid annually on December 31st in the form of additional Series 1 Convertible
Preferred Stock unless the Board of Directors approves a cash dividend. Dividends on Series 1 Convertible Preferred Stock shall cease to accrue on the earlier of
December 31, 2009, or on the date they are converted to Common Shares. Thereafter, the holders of Series 1 Convertible Preferred Stock have the same dividend
rights as holders of Common Stock, as if the Series 1 Convertible Preferred Stock had been converted to Common Stock.

Common Stock — The Company is authorized to issue 65,000,000 shares of $.0001 par value Common Stock. Each share of Common Stock entitles the holder to one
vote at all stockholder meetings. Dividends on Common Stock will be determined annually by the Company’s Board of Directors.

The changes in Series 1 Convertible Preferred Stock and Common Stock shares for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 is summarized as follows:

Series 1
Convertible Common
Preferred Stock Stock
Balance, January 1, 2011 376,387 18,634,369
Preferred Stock Conversions - -
Common Stock Issuances - -
Balance, December 31, 2011 376,387 18,634,369
Preferred Stock Conversions - -
Common Stock Issuances - -
Balance December 31, 2012 376,387 18,634,369

7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:
Promissory notes payable

On June 5, 2012, upon approval of the Board, Anchor entered into two Promissory Notes totaling $400,000, one with Morry Rubin and the other with a major
shareholder of the company. Each Promissory Note was for $200,000, had a 90 day term, and earned interest (payable monthly) at 15% per annum. The Promissory
Notes were to assist Anchor in providing factoring and purchase order funding facilities to some of its clients. The Promissory Notes were subordinate to and
supplemented Anchor's $10 Million Rediscount Credit Facility with a Commercial Bank. Both promissory notes were paid on September 5, 2012. Anchor paid
$15,123 of interest on these notes for year ended December 31, 2012.




Due to Lender

On April 26, 2011, upon approval of the Board, Anchor entered into a Promissory Note for up to $2 million from MGM Funding, LLC (“MGM”). Morry Rubin is the
managing member of MGM. The money to be borrowed under the note was subordinate to Anchor’s accounts receivable credit facility with a senior lender, which
required funds employed to be no less than $5,000,000 before Anchor borrowed funds from MGM. The Promissory Note was to assist Anchor in providing factoring
and purchase order funding facilities to some of its clients and it replaced an earlier agreement between the parties. This facility was to supplement Anchor's $10
Million Rediscount Credit Facility with a Commercial Bank. The MGM Promissory Note was a demand note payable together with interest at the rate of 11% per
annum. If mutually agreed upon in writing by Anchor and MGM, and if Anchor's purchase order fundings exceeded $1 Million, then interest could accrue on the
portion of the unpaid balance of this Note that was funding purchase order advances that are in excess of $1 Million at a rate equal to twenty percent (20%) per annum.
This note was paid in full as of December 31, 2011 and is no longer available to Anchor. Anchor paid $0 and $2,240 of interest to MGM for the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Options granted to officers and directors.

On March 20, 2012, M. Rubin and B. Bernstein were each granted 10 year options to purchase 250,000 shares of common stock each for a total of 500,000 shares,
with the options vesting over a period of 10 years. Due to the anti-dilution provisions of our Series 1 Convertible Preferred Stock, this grant caused an adjustment of
our preferred stock into common stock. Each share of Series 1 Preferred Stock is now convertible into 5.1 shares of the Company’s Common Stock. The holders of the

Series 1 Convertible Preferred Stock have the option to convert the shares to Common Stock at any time. See Note 7.

In June 2012, Paul Healy was granted 10-year non-statutory stock options to purchase 180,000 shares of Anchor’s common stock exercisable at $.25 per share. The
options vest one-third immediately and one-third on each of the successive anniversary dates from Mr. Healy joining the board until fully vested.

8. EMPLOYMENT AND STOCK OPTION AGREEMENTS:

On January 31, 2007, the Board adopted our 2007 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan (the “Plan”), with 2,100,000 common shares authorized for issuance under the
Plan. In October 2009 the Company's stockholders approved an increase in the number of shares covered by the Plan to 4,200,000 shares.

The general purpose of the plan is to provide an incentive to the Company’s employees, directors and consultants by enabling them to share in the future growth of the
business.

At closing of the exchange transaction described above, M. Rubin and Brad Bernstein (“B. Bernstein”), the President of the Company, entered into employment
contracts and stock option agreements. Additionally, at closing two non-employee directors entered into stock option agreements.

The following summarizes M. Rubin’s employment agreement and stock options:
- The employment agreement with M. Rubin currently retains his services as Co-chairman and Chief Executive Officer through January 31, 2014.

- An annual salary of $1 until, the first day of the first month following such time as the Company, shall have, within any period beginning on January
1 and ending not more than 12 months thereafter, earned pre-tax net income exceeding $1,000,000, M. Rubin’s base salary shall be adjusted to an
amount, to be mutually agreed upon between M. Rubin and the Company, reflecting the fair value of the services provided, and to be provided, by
M. Rubin taking into account (i) his position, responsibilities and performance, (ii) the Company’s industry, size and performance, and (iii) other
relevant factors. M. Rubin is eligible to receive annual bonuses as determined by the Company’s compensation committee. M. Rubin shall be
entitled to a monthly automobile allowance of $1,500.

- 10-year options to purchase 650,000 shares exercisable at $1.25 per share, pursuant to the Plan. All of the aforementioned options are fully vested.
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The following summarizes B. Bernstein’s employment agreement and stock options:

- The employment agreement with B. Bernstein currently retains his services as President through January 31, 2014.

- An annual salary of $240,000. The Board may periodically review B. Bernstein’s base salary and may determine to increase (but not decrease) the
base salary in accordance with such policies as the Company may hereafter adopt from time to time. The Board approved an annual bonus program
for Mr. Bernstein commencing with the 2012 fiscal year and ending with the 2014 fiscal year. The annual bonus is equal to 5% of annual net income
provided net income is equal to or greater than $200,000. The bonus is calculated on the Company’s audited GAAP financial statements. B.
Bernstein shall be entitled to a monthly automobile allowance of $1,000.

- 10-year options to purchase 950,000 shares exercisable at $1.25 per share, pursuant to the Plan. All of the aforementioned options are fully vested.

The following table summarizes information about stock options as of December 31, 2012:

Exercise Number Remaining Number
Price Outstanding Contractual Life Exercisable

$ 1.25 1,605,000 4 years 1,605,000
$ 1.00 45,000 6 years 33,750
$ 0.62 500,000 6 years 500, 000
$ 0.17 500,000 9 years -
$ 0.25 180,000 10 years 60,000

2,830,000 2,198,750

The Company measured the fair value of each option award on the date of grant using the Black Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions:

Exercise price $ .17to0$1.25
Term 10 years
Volatility .41 to 2.50
Dividends 0%
Discount rate 0.08% to 4.75%

The fair value amounts recorded for these options in the statement of operations was $10,229 and $4,738 for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. Options cancelled for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 totaled $-0- and $1,131, respectively.

The pre-tax fair value effect recorded for these options in the statement of operations for the years ending December 31, 2012 and 2011 was as follows:

2012 2011
Fully vested stock options $ 2,975 $ 2,014
Unvested portion of stock options 7,254 2,724
$ 10,229 $ 4,738




Stock option activity and weighted average exercise price is summarized as follows:

2012 2011 2010
Options Price Options Price Options Price
Outstanding at beginning of year 2,430,000 $ 1.12 2,440,000 $ 1.12 2,691,500 $ 1.10
Granted 680,000 0.19 - - - -
Canceled (280,000) 1.25 (10,000) 1.00 (251,500) 1.00
Exercised - - - - - -
Outstanding at end of year 2,830,000 0.88 2,430,000 1.12 2,440,000 1.12
Exercisable at end of year 2,198,750 $ 1.08 2,401,250 $ 1.12 2,397,500 $ 1.12

9. WARRANTS:

In March, 2007, the placement agent was issued warrants to purchase 1,342,500 shares of the Company’s common stock. These warrants were due to expire on
January 31, 2012, but were extended by the Company through January 31, 2013 at the same exercise price of $1.10 per share and were again extended by the
Company through January 31, 2014 on the condition that each warrant holder accept a new exercise price of $1.35 per share. The following information was input into

BSM to compute a per warrant price of $.240:

Exercise price $ 1.10
Term 6 years
Volatility 42%
Dividends 0%
Discount rate .05%

For the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company recorded compensation expense of $21,078 related to the issuance of these warrants.

On December 7, 2009, the Company received gross proceeds of $500,002 from the sale of 500,002 shares of common stock and ten year warrants to purchase
2,000,004 shares of common stock exercisable at $1.00 per share. The Black Scholes option pricing model was used to compute the fair value of the warrants.

The following table summarizes information about stock warrants as of December 31, 2012:

Weighted Average
Exercise Number Remaining Number
Price Outstanding Contractual Life Exercisable
$ 1.10 1,342,500 1 Month 1,342,500
$ 1.00 2,000,004 7 years 2,000,004
10. CONCENTRATIONS:
Revenues — The Company recorded revenues from United States companies in the following industries as follows:
Industry For the year ending December 31,
2012 2011
Staffing $ 69,773 $ 147,103
Transportation 782,058 670,090
Service 1,426,583 1,351,193
Other 105,483 141,760
Publishing - 94,396
Apparel 142,729 -
$ 2,526,626 $ 2,404,542




Major Customers — The Company did not have any major customers for the years ending December 31, 2012 and 2011 that represented 10% or more of its revenues.

Client Accounts - As of December 31, 2012, we have five clients that account for an aggregate of approximately 43.8% of our accounts receivable portfolio
and approximately 28.9% of our revenues for the year ended December 31, 2012. The transactions and balances with these clients as of and for the year ended

December 31, 2012 are summarized below:

Percentage of

Percentage of

Accounts Revenues for
Receivable the Twelve
Portfolio As of Months Ended
December 31, December 31,
Entity 2012 2012
Food Service Company in Missouri 12.7% 7.3%
IT Consultant in Maryland 10.6% 7.6%
Paperboard Company in Michigan 8.3% 6.2%
Environmental Consultant in Washington 6.9% 3.7%
Trucking Company in Virginia 5.3% 4.1%
43.8% 28.9%

If these clients’ balances did not collect, the Company’s total potential loss would be $3,019,024; however, the majority of these balances were subsequently collected

and the Company deems them all collectible.

Cash — The Company places its cash and cash equivalents on deposit in noninterest-bearing accounts with financial institutions in the United States. The Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) provides coverage up to $250,000 for substantially all depository accounts. Beginning December 31, 2010 and through
December 31, 2012, all noninterest-bearing transaction accounts are fully insured, regardless of the balance of the account, at all FDIC-insured institutions.

11. SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW:

Cash paid for interest was as follows:

For the year ending December 31,

2012 2011
To a financial institution $ 446,922 $ 489,631
To a related party 15,123 16,669
Total $ 462,045 $ 506,300

Non-cash financing and investing activities consisted of the following:

For the year ending 2012 —

None

For the year ending 2011 —

None

12. INCOME TAXES:

For the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company was able to offset its taxable income through the utilization of net operating loss carryforwards, therefore no
current taxes were incurred. For the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company had taxable income from continuing operations, which were offset by net operating
loss carryforwards, therefore no current taxes were incurred.

The following table reconciles the total provision for income taxes from continuing operations recorded in the consolidated statement of operations with the amounts

computed at the statutory federal tax rate of 34%:

2012 2011
Federal tax expense at statutory rate 146,000 $ 95,000
State tax expense 15,000 11,000
Change in valuation allowance (161,000) (106,000)

Income taxes

$ -

$ -




Temporary differences between the amounts reported in the financial statements and the tax bases of assets and liabilities resulted in deferred taxes. Deferred tax
assets at December 31, 2012 and 2011 were as follows:

2012 2011
Equity based compensation $ 90,000 $ 77,000
Allowance for doubtful accounts 31,000 7,000
Net operating loss carry-forwards 1,426,000 1,624,000
Gross deferred tax assets 1,547,000 1,708,000
Valuation reserve (1,547,000) (1,708,000)
Income taxes $ -3 -

Primarily due to taxable income in 2012, the Company’s net deferred tax asset (prior to any valuation allowance) decreased to $1,547,000. All available evidence,
both positive and negative, was considered to determine whether any impairment of this asset should be recognized. Based on consideration of the available evidence
including historical losses which must be treated as substantial negative evidence and the potential of future taxable income, a $1,547,000 valuation allowance has
been recognized to adjust deferred tax assets to the amount of net operating losses that are expected to be realized. If realized, the tax benefit for this item will reduce
current tax expense for that period as it did for the year ended December 31, 2012.

The Company has the following net operating loss carryforwards available to offset future taxable income:

Amount Expiration
Federal $ 3,565,000 2022 - 2025
State $ 1,200,000 2022 - 2025

The Company files tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various states. At December 31, 2012, federal tax returns remained open for Internal Revenue
Service review for tax years after 2009, while state tax returns remain open for review by state taxing authorities for tax years after 2008. There were no federal or
state income tax audits being conducted at December 31, 2012.

13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:
Lease Commitments
The Company has lease agreements for office space in Charlotte, NC, Boca Raton, FL. and Medley, Florida. All lease agreements are with unrelated parties.

The Company has two Charlotte leases for adjoining space that expire May 31, 2013 and the company plans to renew for another year. The monthly rent for the
combined space is approximately $2,340.

Beginning November 1, 2009, the company entered into a 24 month lease for office space in Boca Raton, FL, and on November 1, 2011 renewed for another two
years. The monthly rental is approximately $1,413.

Beginning November 12, 2012, the company entered into a six month lease for office space in Medley, FL, with an option to renew for twelve month terms. The
monthly rental is $800.




The rental expense for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 was approximately $46,571 and $43,903, respectively. The future minimum lease payments total
$32,656 in 2013.

Contingencies

‘We are not a party to any pending material legal proceedings except as described below. To our knowledge, no governmental authority is contemplating commencing a
legal proceeding in which we would be named as a party.

In April 2011, Brookridge incurred a credit loss of approximately $650,000 due to what appears to be a fraud committed by a Brookridge client (hereinafter referred to
as a "Sherburne Account” client). Anchor’s interest in this loss is 80% or approximately $520,000 and is included in discontinued operations. Brookridge financed
inventory purchased by this client who sold the inventory for the benefit of another company not funded by Brookridge resulting in the loss of Brookridge’s collateral
rights in the inventory. As a result, Brookridge recorded a charge of $650,000 for credit losses in April, 2011. As of December 31, 2012, the Company has recouped a
total of $177,000 of the $650,000 of credit losses. Anchor is currently pursuing all collection remedies and on October 22, 2011 filed a complaint in the Superior Court
of Stamford/Norwalk, Connecticut against the Administrators of the Estate of David Harvey (“Harvey”). Harvey was the owner of Sherburne and the Company is
pursuing its rights under the personal guarantee that Harvey provided. The Complaint is demanding principal of approximately $485,000 plus interest and damages.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
None.
Item 9.A Controls and Procedures.

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we have evaluated the
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as required by Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(b) as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on that
evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that these disclosure controls and procedures are effective.

Report of Management on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting for the company. Internal control over financial
reporting is a process to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of our financial reporting for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. Internal control over financial reporting includes maintaining records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly
reflect our transactions; providing reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary for preparation of our consolidated financial statements; providing
reasonable assurance that receipts and expenditures of company assets are made in accordance with management authorization; and providing reasonable assurance
that unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of company assets that could have a material effect on our financial statements would be prevented or detected on a
timely basis. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting is not intended to provide absolute assurance that a misstatement of our
consolidated financial statements would be prevented or detected.

Management conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this evaluation, management concluded that the company’s
internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2012. There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the
quarter ended December 31, 2012 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting. Our
independent auditors have not audited and are not required to audit this assessment of our internal control over financial reporting for the fiscal year ended December
31, 2012.




Item 9.B. Other Information.
Not applicable.

PART III
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The names, ages and principal occupations of the Company's present officers and directors are listed below.

Position

Name (1) Age
George Rubin* 83 Co-Chairman of the Board and Co-Founder
Morry F. Rubin* 53 Co-Chairman, CEQ, Director, Co-Founder
Brad Bernstein 47 President, CFO, Director and Co-Founder
Paul B. Healy 49 Director

* George Rubin is the father of Morry F. Rubin.
(@) Directors are elected at the annual meeting of stockholders and hold office until the following annual meeting.

The terms of all officers expire at the annual meeting of directors following the annual stockholders meeting. Officers serve at the pleasure of the Board and may be
removed, either with or without cause, by the Board of Directors, and a successor elected by a majority vote of the Board of Directors, at any time, subject to their
rights under employment agreements.

George Rubin has been a director of the Company since January 31, 2007. He served as Co-Chairman of Anchor Funding Services, LLC since its formation in 2003.
Since October, 1998, George Rubin has been a director and a principal owner of Preferred Labor LLC, which completed the sale if its business on April 23, 2007. Mr.
Rubin devotes to Anchor such time as is necessary for the performance of his duties. George Rubin was Chairman of the Board of ATC Group Services, Inc., a
publicly held Company, from 1988 to 1998. ATC was sold to a financial investor group for approximately $160 million. From 1961 to 1987, Mr. Rubin served as
President, Treasurer and Director of Staff Builders, Inc. During that time, Staff Builders, Inc. was a publicly held corporation engaged in providing temporary
personnel in the healthcare, light industrial and clerical fields. While he served as President, Staff Builders, Inc. operated through approximately 100 offices and
generated revenues in excess of $100 million. Mr. Rubin has over 40 years of management experience and serving on board of directors of various entities. Mr. Rubin
has expertise in mergers and acquisitions and in the successful integration of acquired companies. All of these management and financial skills have allowed him to
provide significant leadership and vision to the board of directors.

Morry F. Rubin has been a director and executive officer of the Company since January 31, 2007. He served as Co-Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Anchor
funding Services, LLC since its formation in 2003. Since 1998, Morry F. Rubin also has been Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and principal owner of Preferred
Labor LLC which completed the sale if its business on April 23, 2007. On January 31, 2007, Mr. Rubin became an employee of our company and is devoting such
time to the affairs to the Company as is necessary for the performance of his duties. Prior to his involvement with Preferred Labor, Mr. Rubin was President, Chief
Executive Officer, Treasurer and a director of ATC Group Services, Inc. (“ATC”), a publicly held company, from 1988 to 1998. In January 1998, ATC was sold to a
financial investor group for approximately $160 million. Mr. Rubin was also President, Chief Executive Officer and Treasurer of Aurora Environmental, Inc. from
May 1985 to June 1995, and was a director of Aurora from September 1983 to June 1995. In 1995, Morry Rubin was selected as a finalist for the Ernst & Young
Entrepreneur of the Year under 40 Award for the New York City Region. From 1981 to 1987, Mr. Rubin was employed in sales and as director of acquisitions for Staff
Builders, Inc., a publicly held company engaged in providing temporary personnel in the healthcare, light industrial and clerical fields. Mr. Rubin has over 25 years of
management experience and serving on board of directors of various entities. Mr. Rubin has expertise in mergers and acquisitions and in the successful integration of
acquired companies. All of these management and financial skills have allowed him to provide significant leadership and vision to the board of directors.

Brad Bernstein has been a director and executive officer of the Company since January 31, 2007. He served as President and Chief Financial Officer of Anchor
Funding Services, LLC since its formation in 2003. Mr. Bernstein was employed by Preferred Labor LLC from March 1999 through January, 2007. Mr. Bernstein
served Preferred as its Chief Financial Officer and later as its President. On January 31, 2007, Mr. Bernstein became a full-time employee of our company. Before
joining Preferred Labor he was a partner of Miller, Ellin Consulting Group, LLP. Mr. Bernstein advised companies in many areas to improve their operations and
increase their profitability. Mr. Bernstein’s clients also included major commercial and investment banks, asset based lenders and factoring companies. These
institutions relied on his ability to oversee due diligence engagements and evaluate a company’s financial performance, its internal control structure and the quality of
its assets before making investments or loans. Mr. Bernstein has used his banking relationships to raise debt and negotiate and structure financing for companies. Mr.
Bernstein brings to the board his financial and business expertise as a Certified Public Accountant. Mr. Bernstein received a Bachelor of Arts degree from Columbia
University.
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Paul B. Healy has been a director of the Company since June 2012. Mr. Healy was added to our Board as he is an experienced media executive specializing in
corporate finance, capital raising, investor relations and corporate governance. Mr. Healy currently serves as a Senior Adviser to Sonenshine Partners an investment
bank providing strategic and financial advisory services in New York City. Previously, Mr. Healy served as CEO of Connexiti LL.C, a supply-chain-centric intelligence
database platform; Principal and Managing Director at Frank N. Magid Associates; Vice President, Corporate Development at Hollinger International Inc.; and Vice
President of Media Private Banking at The Chase Manhattan Bank. He serves as a Trustee of Kenyon College and Board Chair of The Kenyon Review. Mr. Healy
graduated from Kenyon College. He is an independent director.

Board Vacancy

In June 2012, Kenneth Smalley and Anthony Woods resigned from the board. One of the vacancies was filled with the election of Mr. Healy. The other board seat
remains vacant as of the filing date of this Form 10-K.

Corporate Governance

Our business, property and affairs are managed by, or under the direction of, our Board, in accordance with the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware and
our By-Laws. Members of the Board are kept informed of our business through discussions with the Chief Executive Officer and other key members of management,
by reviewing materials provided to them by management.

We continue to review our corporate governance policies and practices by comparing our policies and practices with those suggested by various groups or authorities
active in evaluating or setting best practices for corporate governance of public companies. Based on this review, we have adopted, and will continue to adopt, changes
that the Board believes are the appropriate corporate governance policies and practices for our Company. We have adopted changes and will continue to adopt changes,
as appropriate, to comply with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and subsequent rule changes made by the SEC and any applicable securities exchange.

Director Qualifications and Diversity

The board seeks independent directors who represent a diversity of backgrounds and experiences that will enhance the quality of the board’s deliberations and
decisions. Candidates shall have substantial experience with one or more publicly traded companies or shall have achieved a high level of distinction in their chosen
fields. The board is particularly interested in maintaining a mix that includes individuals who are active or retired executive officers and senior executives, particularly
those with experience in the finance and capital market industries.

In evaluating nominations to the Board of Directors, our Board also looks for certain personal attributes, such as integrity, ability and willingness to apply sound and
independent business judgment, comprehensive understanding of a director’s role in corporate governance, availability for meetings and consultation on Company
matters, and the willingness to assume and carry out fiduciary responsibilities. Qualified candidates for membership on the Board will be considered without regard to
race, color, religion, sex, ancestry, national origin or disability.

Risk Oversight

Enterprise risks are identified and prioritized by management and each prioritized risk is assigned to the full board for oversight. These risks include, without
limitation, the following:

Risks and exposures associated with strategic, financial and execution risks and other current matters that may present material risk to our operations, plans, prospects
or reputation.

Risks and exposures associated with financial matters, particularly financial reporting, tax, accounting, disclosure, internal control over financial reporting, financial
policies, investment guidelines and credit and liquidity matters.

Risks and exposures relating to corporate governance; and management and director succession planning.

Risks and exposures associated with leadership assessment, and compensation programs and arrangements, including incentive plans.

23




Board Leadership Structure

The Chairman of the Board presides at all meetings of the Board. The Chairman is appointed on an annual basis by at least a majority vote of the remaining directors.
Currently, the offices of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer are not entirely separated, as our Chief Executive officer is also Co-Chairman of the
Board. The Company has no fixed policy with respect to the separation of the offices of the Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. The Board believes
that ultimately the separation of the offices of the Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer is likely to be part of the succession planning process and that it
is in the best interests of the company to make this determination from time to time.

Limitation of Directors’ Liability and Indemnification

Our directors are not personally liable to us or to any of our stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director except for liability (i) for any
breach of the director’s duty of loyalty to us or our stockholders, (ii) for acts or omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or a knowing
violation of law, (iii) under Section 174 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware or (iv) for any transaction from which the director derived any
improper personal benefit. If the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware or any other statute of the State of Delaware is amended to authorize the further
elimination or limitation of the liability of our directors, then the liability of our directors will be limited to the fullest extent permitted by the statutes of the State of
Delaware, as so amended, and such elimination or limitation of liability shall be in addition to, and not in lieu of, the provided limitation on the liability of a director.
To the maximum extent permitted by law, we fully indemnify any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or
completed action, suit or proceeding (whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative) by reason of the fact that such person is or was our director or officer, or
is or was serving at our request as a director or officer of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, employee benefit plan or other enterprise, against
expenses (including attorneys’ fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by such person in connection with such action,
suit or proceeding. To the extent permitted by law, we may fully indemnify any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened,
pending or completed action, suit or proceeding (whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative) by reason of the fact that such person is or was our employee
or agent, or is or was serving at our request as an employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, employee benefit plan or other enterprise,
against expenses (including attorneys’ fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by such person in connection with such
action, suit or proceeding. We will, if so requested by a director or officer, advance expenses (including attorneys’ fees) incurred by such director or officer in advance
of the final disposition of such action, suit or proceeding upon the receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of such director or officer to repay such amount if it shall
ultimately be determined that such director or officer is not entitled to indemnification. We may advance expenses (including attorneys’ fees) incurred by an employee
or agent in advance of the final disposition of such action, suit or proceeding upon such terms and conditions, if any, as our Board deems appropriate.

Committees

Currently the Company has no audit, compensation, corporate governance, nominating or other committee of the Board of Directors. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, as amended, required each corporation to have an audit committee consisting solely of independent directors and to identify the independent directors who are
considered to be a “financial expert.” Under the National Association of Securities Dealers Automated Quotations definition, an “independent director means a person
other than an officer or employee of the Company or its subsidiaries or any other individuals having a relationship that, in the opinion of the Company’s board of
directors, would interfere with the exercise of independent judgment in carrying out the responsibilities of the director. The board’s discretion in determining director
independence is not completely unfettered. Further, under the NASDAQ definition, an independent director is a person who (1) is not currently (or whose immediate
family members are not currently), and has not been over the past three years (or whose immediate family members have not been over the past three years), employed
by the company; (2) has not (or whose immediate family members have not) been paid more than $60,000 during the current or past three fiscal years; (3) has not (or
whose immediately family has not) been a partner in or controlling shareholder or executive officer of an organization which the company made, or from which the
company received, payments in excess of the greater of $200,000 or 5% of that organizations consolidated gross revenues, in any of the most recent three fiscal years;
(4) has not (or whose immediate family members have not), over the past three years been employed as an executive officer of a company in which an executive
officer of Anchor has served on that company’s compensation committee; or (5) is not currently (or whose immediate family members are not currently), and has not
been over the past three years (or whose immediate family members have not been over the past three years) a partner of Anchor’s outside auditor.

The term “Financial Expert” is defined under Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, as amended, as a person who has the following attributes: an understanding of generally
accepted accounting principles and financial statements; has the ability to assess the general application of such principles in connection with the accounting for
estimates, accruals and reserves; experience preparing, auditing, analyzing or evaluating financial statements that present a breadth and level of complexity of
accounting issues that are generally comparable to the breadth and complexity of issues that can reasonably be expected to be raised by the company’s financial
statements, or experience actively supervising one or more persons engaged in such activities; an understanding of internal controls and procedures for financial
reporting; and an understanding of audit committee functions.
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Board Members Who Are Deemed Independent
Our board of directors has determined that Paul Healy is an “independent director” and a “financial expert” as defined in accordance with the definitions above.

Code of Ethics

Effective March 3, 2003, the Securities & Exchange Commission requires registrants like the Company to either adopt a code of ethics that applies to the Company’s
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer or explain why the Company has not adopted such a code of ethics. For purposes of item 406 of Regulation S-K,
the term “code of ethics” means written standards that are reasonably designed to deter wrongdoing and to promote:

- Honest and ethical conduct, including the ethical handling of actual or apparent conflicts of interest between personal and professional relationships;

- Full, fair, accurate, timely and understandable disclosure in reports and documents that the Company files with, or submits to, the Securities & Exchange
Commission and in other public communications made by the Company;

- Compliance with applicable governmental law, rules and regulations;

- The prompt internal reporting of violations of the code to an appropriate person or persons identified in the code; and

- Accountability for adherence to the code.

As of the date of this Form 10-K, we have not adopted a code of ethics and none is anticipated until an audit committee is appointed to oversee its anticipated
provisions.

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, requires our officers and directors, and persons who own more than ten percent of a registered class
of our equity securities, to file reports of ownership and changes in ownership with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission”). Officers, directors
and greater than ten percent stockholders are required by the Commission's regulations to furnish us with copies of all Section 16(a) forms they file. During fiscal year
2012, none of our officers, directors or 10% or greater stockholders are believed to have filed any forms late to the best of our knowledge.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

The following table sets forth the overall compensation earned over the fiscal years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 by (1) each person who served as the principal
executive officer of the Company or its subsidiary during fiscal year 2012; (2) our most highly compensated (up to a maximum of two) executive officers as of
December 31, 2012 with compensation during fiscal year ended 2012 of $100,000 or more; and (3) those two individuals, if any, who would have otherwise been in

included in section (2) above but for the fact that they were not serving as an executive of us as of December 31, 2012.

Non-Equity Non-qualified All Other

Stock Options Incentive Plan Deferred Compen-

Fiscal Salary Bonus Awards Awards Compensation Compensation sation

Year (%) ($) (%) $)(1) (%) Earnings ($) $) (3 Total ($)
Morry F. Rubin 2011 $ 1.00 $ 0- $ 0- $ -0- $ 0- $ -0- $ 18,000 $ 18,001
Chief Executive
Officer (4) 2012 $ 1.00 $ -0- $ 0- $ 21,000 $ -0- $ -0- $ 18,000 $ 39,001
Brad Bernstein 2011 $ 240,000 $ 14,486 $ 0- $ -0- $ 0- % -0- $ 12,000 $ 266,486
President 2012 $ 240,000 $ 20,021 $ -0- $ 39,000 $ -0- $ -0- $ 12,000 $ 311,021

(1)  Topic 718 requires the company to determine the overall full grant date fair value of the restricted stock awards and options as of the date of grant based upon
the Black-Scholes method of valuation which total amounts are set forth in the table above under the year of grant, and to then expense that value over the
service period over which the restricted stock awards and options become vested. As a general rule, for time-in-service-based restricted stock awards and
options, the company will immediately expense any restricted stock awards and option or portion thereof which is vested upon grant, while expensing the
balance on a pro rata basis over the remaining vesting term of the restricted stock awards and options. For a description Topic 718 and the assumptions used in
determining the value of the restricted stock awards and options under the Black-Scholes model of valuation, see the notes to the consolidated financial
statements included with this Form 10-K.

(2)  Includes all other compensation not reported in the preceding columns, including (i) perquisites and other personal benefits, or property, unless the aggregate
amount of such compensation is less than $10,000; (ii) any “gross-ups” or other amounts reimbursed during the fiscal year for the payment of taxes; (iii)
discounts from market price with respect to securities purchased from the company except to the extent available generally to all security holders or to all
salaried employees; (iv) any amounts paid or accrued in connection with any termination (including without limitation through retirement, resignation,
severance or constructive termination, including change of responsibilities) or change in control; (v) contributions to vested and unvested defined contribution
plans; (vi) any insurance premiums paid by, or on behalf of, the company relating to life insurance for the benefit of the named executive officer; and (vii) any
dividends or other earnings paid on stock or option awards that are not factored into the grant date fair value required to be reported in a preceding column.

3) Includes compensation for service as a director described under Director Compensation, below.

4 Does not include monies paid to Mr. Rubin on an investment in the Company as described under "Item 13".

For a description of the material terms of each named executive officers’ employment agreement, including the terms of any contract, agreement, plan or other
arrangement that provides for any payment to a named executive officer in connection with his or her resignation, retirement or other termination, or a change in
control of the company see section below entitled “Employment Agreements.”

No outstanding common share purchase option or other equity-based award granted to or held by any named executive officer in 2012 were repriced or otherwise
materially modified, including extension of exercise periods, the change of vesting or forfeiture conditions, the change or elimination of applicable performance
criteria, or the change of the bases upon which returns are determined, nor was there any waiver or modification of any specified performance target, goal or condition

to payout.

Executive Officer Outstanding Equity Awards At Fiscal Year-End



The following table provides certain information concerning any common share purchase options, stock awards or equity incentive plan awards held by each of our
named executive officers that were outstanding, exercisable and/or vested as of December 31, 2012.
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Option Awards Stock Awards
Equity
Incentive
Plan
Awards: Equity
Number Incentive Plan
Equity of Awards:
Incentive Plan Unearned Market or
Awards: Market Shares, Payout Value
Number of Number of Number of Number of Value of Units or Of Unearned
Securities Securities Securities Shares or Shares or Other Shares, Units
Underlying Underlying Underlying Units of Units of Rights Or
Unexercised ~ Unexercised Unexercised Option Option Stock That Stock That That Have Other Rights
Options(#) Options(#) Unearned Exercise Expiration Have Not Have Not Not That Have Not
Name Exercisable  Unexercisable Options (#) Price ($) Date Vested (#) Vested Vested Vested
Morry F. Rubin 650,000 -0- -0- 1.25 01/31/2017 -0- N/A -0- N/A
Morry F. Rubin 250,000 -0- -0- 0.62 03/23/2019 -0- N/A -0- N/A
Morry F. Rubin 25,000 225,000 -0- 0.17 03/20/2022 -0- N/A -0- N/A
Brad Bernstein 950,000 -0- -0- 1.25 01/31/2017 -0- N/A -0- N/A
Brad Bernstein 250,000 -0- -0- 0.62 03/23/2019 -0- N/A -0- N/A
Brad Bernstein 25,000 225,000 -0- 0.17 03/20/2022 -0- N/A -0- N/A

N/A — Not applicable.
Employment Agreements

Each of the following executive officers is a party to an employment agreement with the Company.

2013
Name Position Annual Salary(1) Bonus (2)
Morry F. Rubin Chief Executive Officer $1(1) Annual bonuses at the discretion of the Board in an amount determined by
the compensation committee.
Brad Bernstein President $ 240,000 (2) Annual bonus equal to 5% of annual net income provided net income is

equal to or greater than $200,000.

N/A — Not applicable.

(1) Effective commencing on the first day of the first month following such time as the Company shall have, within any period beginning on January 1 and ending
not more than 12 months thereafter, earned pre-tax net income exceeding $1,000,000, Mr. Rubin’s Base Salary shall be adjusted to an amount, to be mutually
agreed upon between Employee and the Company, reflecting the fair value of the services provided, and to be provided, by Employee taking into account (i)
Employee’s position, responsibilities and performance, (ii) the Company’s industry, size and performance, and (iii) other relevant factors.

(2) The Company shall pay Mr. Bernstein a fixed base salary of $205,000 during the first year of the Employment Term (commencing January 31, 2007), $220,000
during the second year of the Employment Term and $240,000 during the Third Year and any additional year of the Employment Term. The Board may
periodically review Mr. Bernstein’s Base Salary and may determine to increase (but not decrease) the Base Salary, in accordance with such policies as the
Company may hereafter adopt from time to time, if it deems appropriate. The Board approved an annual bonus program for Mr. Bernstein commencing with the
2012 fiscal year and ending with the 2014 fiscal year. The annual bonus is equal to 5% of annual net income provided net income is equal to or greater than
$200,000. The bonus is calculated on the Company’s audited GAAP financial statements.

On January 31, 2007, we entered into an employment agreement with Morry F. Rubin (“M. Rubin®) to retain his services as Co-chairman and Chief Executive Officer.
We also entered into an employment agreement to retain the services of Brad Bernstein (“Bernstein”) as President. The following summarizes the employment
agreements of M. Rubin and Bernstein, who are individually referred to as “Executive” and collectively as “Executives.”
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- Each Executive shall receive a base salary and bonuses as described above. M. Rubin and Bernstein shall be entitled to a monthly automobile allowance of
$1,500 and $1,000, respectively;

- M. Rubin and Bernstein were granted on January 31, 2007 10-year options to purchase 650,000 and 950,000 shares, respectively, exercisable at $1.25 per
share, pursuant to the Company’s 2007 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan. All options granted to them have vested.

- The Agreement shall be automatically renewed for additional one year terms unless either party notifies the other, in writing, at least 60 days prior to the
expiration of the term, of such party’s intention not to renew the Agreement. On December 2, 2012, each Agreement renewed for one additional year through
the close of business on January 31, 2014;

- Mr. Bernstein is required to devote his full business time and efforts to the business and affairs of the Company. Mr. Rubin is required to devote to the
Company, such time is necessary for the performance of his duties. Each executive shall be entitled to indemnification to the full extent permitted by law.
Each executive is subject to provisions relating to non-compete, non-solicitation of employees and customers during the term of the Agreement and for a
specified period thereafter (other than for termination without cause or by the Executive for good reason).

- Each Executive shall be entitled to participate in such Executive benefit and other compensatory or non-compensatory plans that are available to similarly
situated executives of the Company and shall be entitled to be reimbursed for up to $25,000 of medical costs not covered by the Company’s health insurance
per year.

- The Company shall, to the extent such benefits can be obtained at a reasonable cost, provide the Executive with disability insurance benefits of at least 60%
of his gross Base Salary per month; provided that for purposes of the foregoing, prior to the date on which M. Rubin’s Base Salary is adjusted above $1.00 as
described above, M. Rubin’s Base Salary shall be deemed to be $300,000. In the event of the Executive’s Disability, the Executive and his family shall
continue to be covered by all of the Company’s Executive welfare benefit plans at the Company’s expense, to the extent such benefits may, by law, be
provided, for the lesser of the term of such Disability and 24 months, in accordance with the terms of such plans; and

- The Company shall, to the extent such benefits can be obtained at a reasonable cost, provide the Executive with life insurance benefits in the amount of at
least $500,000. In the event of the Executive’s death, the Executive’s family shall continue to be covered by all of the Company’s Executive welfare benefit
plans, at the Company’s expense, to the extent such benefits may, by law, be provided, for 12 months following the Executive’s death in accordance with the
terms of such plans.

Termination of Employment.

Each Executive’s employment with the Company may be terminated by mutual agreement. The following description summarizes the severance pay (exclusive of base
salary, car allowances and benefits due up to the date of termination), if any, of each Executive in the event of termination (other than by mutual agreement) and the
treatment of each Executive’s options:

Termination for Cause. In the event of any termination for cause (as defined in the agreement), the Executive shall not receive any severance pay and any and all stock
options granted to the Executive shall terminate according to their terms of grant with any such vested options being exercisable for the shorter of (i) 90 days from the
date of termination and (ii) the exercise term of each relevant option grant.

Termination for Disability or Death. In the event of termination for disability (as defined in the agreement) or death, Executive shall receive all bonuses then earned,
six months severance pay in the case of death, and the acceleration of certain options. Such options may be exercised for the longer of (i) 12 months from the date of
the date of termination and (ii) the exercise term of each relevant option grant.

Termination without Cause. The Executive's employment with the Company may be terminated by the Company, in the absence of Cause and by Executive for Good
Reason (as defined in the agreement). In such event, Executive shall receive 12 months severance pay, targeted bonuses, continuation of certain benefits and full
vesting of all options. Such options may be exercised for the longer of (i) 12 months from the date of termination and (ii) the exercise term of each relevant option
grant.
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Voluntary Resignation. The Executive’s employment with the Company may be terminated by the Executive without Good Reason. In such event, the Executive shall
not receive any severance pay and unless termination occurs in the first year of employment, all vested options shall be retained by the Executive for the full exercise
term of each relevant option.

Option Grants.

Messrs. M. Rubin and Bernstein are each eligible to receive stock options and other compensation as determined at the discretion of the board. See “Executive Officer
Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End” above for a description of outstanding options granted to Messrs. M. Rubin and Bernstein as of December 31, 2012.

Review of Risks Arising from Compensation Policies and Practices

We have reviewed our compensation policies and practices for all employees and concluded that any risks arising from our policies and practices are not reasonably
likely to have a material adverse effect on the Company.

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION
Cash Fees and Options

Currently the Company has no audit, compensation, corporate governance, nominating or other committee of the Board of Directors, although it intends to establish an
audit, compensation and corporate governance committee in the near future. The chairman of each committee that is formed by us at a later date will be entitled to an
annual fee of $6,500 and each non-executive director will receive an annual fee of $6,500 as a member of the Board, a fee of $1,000 per Board or Committee meeting
(or consent in lieu of a meeting), and an activity fee of $1,000 per day for services rendered by the Board member. George Rubin is receiving the same health and
dental insurance benefits as those provided to our executive officers to the extent permitted by the rules and regulations applicable thereto and an additional medical
reimbursement of up to $25,000 per annum. Members of the Board of Directors are eligible to participate under one or more of our company’s stock option plan(s). On
January 31, 2007, we established a stock option plan and granted non-statutory stock options to purchase 950,000, shares and 650,000 shares to Brad Bernstein and
Morry F. Rubin, respectively, exercisable at $1.25 per share. These options have a term of ten years and vest one-third on the date of grant, one-third on February 29,
2008 and one-third on February 28, 2009. On March 23, 2009, we granted non-statutory stock options to purchase 250,000 shares to each of Rubin and Bernstein,
exercisable at $0.62 per share; these options have a term of 10 years and vested on the date of grant. On March 20, 2012, we granted non-statutory stock options to
purchase 250,000 shares to each of Rubin and Bernstein, exercisable at $0.17 per share; these options have a term of 10 years and vest over 10 years. On January 31,
2007 we granted non-statutory stock options to purchase 180,000 shares to each of Kenneth Smalley and Frank Delape, former directors, exercisable at $1.25 per
share. These options have a term of ten years and vest one-third on the date of grant, one-third on February 29, 2008 and one-third on February 28, 2009. On
December 2, 2008, Mr. DeLape resigned from the Board. He had a period of 90 days to exercise his vested options, which options expired unexercised on March 2,
2009. On June 8, 2012, Mr. Smalley resigned from the Board. He had a period of 90 days to exercise his vested options, which expired unexercised. On May 28, 2008,
we granted E. Anthony Woods options to purchase 100,000 shares, exercisable at $1.25 per share from the vesting date through May 28, 2018, with one-third vesting
on May 28, 2008, one third vesting on May 28, 2009 and the remaining one-third vesting on May 28, 2011. Mr. Woods resigned from the Board on June 13, 2012. He
had a period of 90 days to exercise his vested options, which expired unexercised. On June 14, 2012, we granted Paul B. Healy options to purchase 180,000 shares,
exercisable at $0.25 per share from the vesting date through June 14, 2022, with one-third vesting on June 14, 2012, one third vesting on June 14, 2012 and the
remaining one-third vesting on June 14, 2014. Equity incentive awards and cash payments to directors will be determined in the sole discretion of the Board and/or
compensation committee of the Board at such times and in such amounts as the Board or a committee thereof determines to make such awards.

Travel Expenses
All directors shall be reimbursed for their reasonable out of pocket expenses associated with attending the meetings.
2012 Compensation

The following table shows the overall compensation earned for the 2012 fiscal year with respect to each non-employee and non-executive directors of the Company as
of December 31, 2012.
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DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Fees

Earned Non-Equity Nonqualified
Name and or Paid Stock Option Incentive Plan Deferred All Other
Principal in Cash Awards Awards ($) Compensation Compensation Compensation
Position ($) %@ (@) %) () Earnings ($) %) (3) Total ($)
Paul B. Healy, Director $ 5521 $ -0- $ 5400 $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ 10,921
Kenneth Smalley, former
Director $ 4844 $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ 4,844
George Rubin, Director
4 $ 10,500 $ 0- $ 0- $ 0- $ -0- $ 0- $ 10,500
E. Anthony Woods,
former Director $ 4979 $ 0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ 4,979

M

@
(©)

4

Topic 718 requires the company to determine the overall full grant date fair market value of the restricted stock awards and the options as of the date of grant
based upon the Black-Scholes method of valuation which total amounts are set forth in the table above under the year of grant, and to then expense that value
over the service period over which the restricted stock awards and the options become exercisable vested. As a general rule, for time-in-service-based restricted
stock awards and options, the company will immediately expense any restricted stock award or option or portion thereof which is vested upon grant, while
expensing the balance on a pro rata basis over the remaining vesting term of the restricted stock award and option. For a description of Topic 718 and the
assumptions used in determining the value of the restricted stock awards and options under the Black-Scholes model of valuation, see the notes to the
consolidated financial statements included with this Form 10-SB/A.

Excludes awards or earnings reported in preceding columns.

Includes all other compensation not reported in the preceding columns, including (i) perquisites and other personal benefits, or property, unless the aggregate
amount of such compensation is less than $10,000; (ii) any “gross-ups” or other amounts reimbursed during the fiscal year for the payment of taxes; (iii)
discounts from market price with respect to securities purchased from the company except to the extent available generally to all security holders or to all
salaried employees; (iv) any amounts paid or accrued in connection with any termination (including without limitation through retirement, resignation, severance
or constructive termination, including change of responsibilities) or change in control; (v) contributions to vested and unvested defined contribution plans; (vi)
any insurance premiums paid by, or on behalf of, the company relating to life insurance for the benefit of the director; (vii) any consulting fees earned, or paid or
payable; (viii) any annual costs of payments and promises of payments pursuant to a director legacy program and similar charitable awards program; and (ix) any
dividends or other earnings paid on stock or option awards that are not factored into the grant date fair value required to be reported in a preceding column.

All other compensation includes the payment of health insurance which is not provided to other non-employee directors. Mr. Rubin's compensation excludes
monies earned as an investor. See "Item 13" for a description of certain transactions involving George Rubin.

Indemnification; Director and Officer Liability Insurance.

The Company has agreed to indemnify (and advance the costs of defense of) each director (and his legal representatives) to the fullest extent permitted by the laws of
the state in which the Company is incorporated, as in effect at the time of the subject act or omission, or by the Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws of the
Company, whichever affords greater protection to each director, and both during and after termination (for any reason). The Company shall cause each director to be
covered under a directors and officers' liability insurance policy for his acts (or non-acts) as an officer or director of the Company or any of its affiliates. Such policy
shall be maintained by the Company at its expense in an amount of at least $5 million during the term each director serves the Company (including the time period of
coverage after each director’s service terminates for any reason whatsoever).

In the event of any litigation or other proceeding between the Company and a director with respect to enforcement of a director’s rights to indemnification and director
and officer liability insurance and such litigation or proceeding results in final judgment or order in favor of the Director, which judgment or order is substantially
inconsistent with the positions asserted by the Company in such litigation or proceeding, the losing party shall reimburse the prevailing party for all of his/its
reasonable costs and expenses relating to such litigation or other proceeding, including, without limitation, his/its reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses.
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2007 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan

On January 31, 2007, the Board adopted our 2007 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan (the “Plan”), with 2,100,000 common shares authorized for issuance under the
Plan. In October 2009 the Company's stockholders approved an increase in the number of shares covered by the Plan to 4,200,000 shares.

The following table shows the amounts that have been granted under the Plan as of December 31, 2012:

2007 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan

Dollar Value Number of
Name and Position (%) Options
Morry R. Rubin, Chief Executive Officer (2) 31,250(1) 1,150,000
Brad Bernstein, President (2) 31,250(1) 1,450,000
Executive Group (two persons) (2) 63,000(1) 2,600,000
Non-Executive Director Group (one person) (2) 9,000(1) 180,000
Non-Executive Officer Employee Group -0-(1) 50,000

€

@

The dollar value of these options is based upon the fair market value of our common stock as of the close of business on December 21, 2012 of $.30 per share,
which was the last trade in fiscal 2012, less the exercise price of each respective option.

We have a stock option plan covering 4,200,000 shares and granted non-statutory stock options to purchase 950,000, shares and 650,000 shares to Brad
Bernstein and Morry F. Rubin, respectively, exercisable at $1.25 per share. These options have a term of ten years and vest one-third on the date of grant, one-
third on February 29, 2008 and one-third on February 28, 2009. On March 23, 2009, we granted non-statutory stock options to purchase 250,000 shares to
each of Rubin and Bernstein, exercisable at $0.62 per share; these options have a term of 10 years and vested on the date of grant. On March 20, 2012, we
granted non-statutory stock options to purchase 250,000 shares to each of Rubin and Bernstein, exercisable at $0.17 per share; these options have a term of 10
years and vest over 10 years. On January 31, 2007 we granted non-statutory stock options to purchase 180,000 shares to each of Kenneth Smalley and Frank
Delape, former directors, exercisable at $1.25 per share. These options have a term of ten years and vest one-third on the date of grant, one-third on February
29, 2008 and one-third on February 28, 2009. On December 2, 2008, Mr. DeLape resigned from the Board. He had a period of 90 days to exercise his vested
options, which options expired unexercised on March 2, 2009. On June 8, 2012, Mr. Smalley resigned from the Board. He had a period of 90 days to exercise
his vested options, which expired unexercised. On May 28, 2008, we granted E. Anthony Woods options to purchase 100,000 shares, exercisable at $1.25 per
share from the vesting date through May 28, 2018, with one-third vesting on May 28, 2008, one third vesting on May 28, 2009 and the remaining one-third
vesting on May 28, 2011. Mr. Woods resigned from the Board on June 13, 2012. He had a period of 90 days to exercise his vested options, which expired
unexercised. On June 14, 2012, we granted Paul B. Healy options to purchase 180,000 shares, exercisable at $0.25 per share from the vesting date through
June 14, 2022, with one-third vesting on June 14, 2012, one third vesting on June 14, 2012 and the remaining one-third vesting on June 14, 2014.

The following is a summary of the material features of the Plan:

Shares Subject to the Plan

The maximum number of shares of common stock with respect to which awards may be made under the Plan is 4,200,000. In the event of any stock split, reverse
stock split, stock dividend, recapitalization, reclassification or other similar event or transaction, the Compensation Committee will make such equitable adjustments to
the number, kind and price of shares subject to outstanding grants and to the number of shares available for issuance under the Plan as it deems necessary or
appropriate. Shares subject to forfeiture, cancelled or expired awards granted under the Plan will again become available for issuance under the Plan. In addition,
shares surrendered in payment of any exercise price or in satisfaction of any withholding obligation arising in connection with an award granted under the Plan will
again become available for issuance under the Plan.

30




Administration

A committee of two or more directors appointed by the Board will administer the Plan (the “Committee”); however, until the Committee is appointed, the Board
administers the Plan. The Committee interprets the Plan, selects award recipients, determines the number of shares subject to each award and establishes the price,
vesting and other terms of each award. While there are no predetermined performance formulas or measures or other specific criteria used to determine recipients of
awards under the Plan, awards are based generally upon consideration of the grantee's position and responsibilities, the nature of services provided, the value of the
services to us, the present and potential contribution of the grantee to our success, the anticipated number of years of service remaining and other factors which the
Board or the Committee deems relevant.

Eligibility

Employees, directors, consultants and other service providers of our Company and its affiliates are eligible to participate in the Plan, provided; however, that only
employees of our Company are eligible to receive incentive stock options. Other than consultants and other service providers, the number of currently eligible
employees in the Plan is five. The maximum number of shares that are the subject of grants made under the Plan to any individual during any calendar year may not
exceed 1,000,000 shares, subject to certain adjustments. A participant in the Plan may not accrue dividend equivalents during any calendar year in excess of $500,000.

Amendment and Termination of Plan

The Board may amend, alter or discontinue the Plan at any time; provided, however, that the Board may not amend the Plan without stockholder approval if such
approval is required in order to comply with the Code or applicable laws or to comply with applicable stock exchange requirements. The Plan will terminate on the day
immediately preceding the tenth anniversary of the Plan’s effective date, unless the Plan is terminated earlier by the Board or is extended by the Board with the
approval of the stockholders.

Grants

Grants made under the Plan may consist of incentive stock options, non-qualified stock options, stock appreciation rights or “SARs”, stock awards, stock unit awards,
dividend equivalents and other stock-based awards. Each grant is subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the Plan and to those other terms and conditions
specified by the Committee and memorialized in a written grant agreement between our Company and grant recipient (the “Grant Instrument”).

Stock Options

The Plan permits the grant of incentive stock options (“ISOs”) to our employees and the employees of our subsidiaries. The Plan also provides for the grant of non-
qualified stock options (“NQSOs”) to our employees, directors, and consultants and other individuals who perform services for us (as well as to employees, directors,
consultants and service providers of our subsidiaries). The exercise price of any stock option granted under the Plan will be equal to or greater than the fair market
value of such stock on the date the option is granted, provided, however, that the exercise price of any incentive stock options granted under the Plan to an employee
who, at the time of grant, owns stock possessing more than 10% of the total combined voting power of all classes of our stock or any parent or subsidiary of us, may
not be less than 110% of the fair market value of our common stock on the date of grant. Generally, payment of the option price may be made (i) in cash, (ii) with the
Committee’s consent, by approval of the Committee, by delivering shares of Company Stock owned by the Optionee (including Company Stock acquired in
connection with the exercise of an Option, subject to such restrictions as the Committee deems appropriate) and having a Fair Market Value on the date of exercise
equal to the Exercise Price or by attestation (on a form prescribed by the Committee) to ownership of shares of Company Stock having a Fair Market Value on the date
of exercise equal to the Exercise Price, (iii) through a broker in accordance with applicable laws, or (iv) with a combination of cash and shares. The participant must
pay the option price and the amount of withholding tax due, if any, at the time of exercise. Shares of common stock will not be issued or transferred upon exercise of
the option until the option price and the withholding obligation are fully paid.

Under the Plan, each option is exercisable at such time and to such extent as specified in the pertinent Grant Instrument between our Company and the option
recipient. However, no option shall be exercisable with respect to any shares of common stock more than ten years after the date of grant of such award (except as
otherwise determined by the Committee with respect to non-incentive options) and no incentive stock option that is granted to an employee, who at the time of grant,
owns stock possessing more than 10% of the total combined voting power of all classes of stock of our Company, or any parent or subsidiary of ours, may be exercised
more than five years from the date of grant. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Committee may provide, in a Grant Instrument, that a Grantee may transfer
Nongqualified Stock Options to family members, or one or more trusts or other entities for the benefit of or owned by family members, consistent with the applicable
securities laws, according to such terms as the Committee may determine; provided that the Grantee receives no consideration for the transfer of an Option and the
transferred Option shall continue to be subject to the same terms and conditions as were applicable to the Option immediately before the transfer.
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Effects of Termination of Service with our Company

Generally, unless provided otherwise in the Grant Instrument, the right to exercise any option or SAR (described below) terminates ninety (90) days following
termination of the participant’s relationship with the Company for reasons other than death, disability or termination for “cause” as defined in the Plan. If the
participant’s relationship with us terminates due to death or disability, unless provided otherwise in the Grant Instrument, the right to exercise an option or SAR will
terminate the earlier of one year following such termination or the original expiration date. If the participant’s relationship with us is terminated for “cause” any option
or SAR not already exercised will automatically be forfeited as of the date such termination.

Stock Awards

We may issue awards of our common stock pursuant to the terms of the Plan. A stock award may be issued for consideration or for no consideration and may be
subject to certain restrictions and risk of forfeiture (such as the completion of a period of service or attainment of a performance goal) as determined by the Committee
and set forth in the Grant Instrument governing the stock award. If a participant’s employment terminates before the vesting condition is fulfilled, the shares will be
forfeited. While the shares remain unvested, a participant may not sell, assign, transfer, pledge or otherwise dispose of the shares. Unless otherwise determined by the
Committee, a stock award entitles the participant to all of the rights of a stockholder of our Company, including the right to vote the shares and the right to receive any
dividends thereon.

Stock Units

The Plan provides for the grant of stock units to employees, non-employee directors, or consultants or other individuals who perform services for us, subject to any
terms and conditions, including the fulfillment of specified performance goals or other conditions, as may be established by the Committee. Each stock unit represents
one hypothetical share of common stock and the right of the grantee to receive an amount based on the value of a share of our common stock. Payments with respect to
stock units may be made in cash or in shares of common stock, or in combination of the two as determined by the appointed committee.

Stock Appreciation Rights

The Plan also provides for the grant of SARs, either alone or in tandem with stock options. An SAR entitles its holder to a cash payment of the excess of the fair
market value of our common stock on the date of exercise, over the fair market value of our common stock on the date of grant. An SAR issued in tandem with a stock
option will have the same terms as the stock option. The terms of an SAR granted alone, without an option, will be established by the Committee, in the Grant
Instrument governing the SAR.

Other Stock-Based Award

The Committee may grant other stock-based awards, other than those described herein, that are based on, measured by or payable in shares of common stock on such

terms and conditions as the Committee may determine. Such awards may be subject to the achievement of performance goals or other conditions and may be payable
in cash, shares of common stock or any combination of cash and shares of common stock as the Committee shall determine.
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Dividend Equivalents

The Committee may grant dividend equivalents in connection with grants under the Plan. Dividend equivalents may be paid currently or accrued as contingent cash
obligations and may be payable in cash or shares of common stock, and upon such terms as the appointed committee may establish, including the achievement of
specific performance goals.

Change of Control of the Company
In the event of a Change of Control, as that term is defined in the Plan, of our Company, the Committee has discretion to, among other things, accelerate the vesting of

outstanding grants, cashout outstanding grants or exchange outstanding grants for similar grants of a successor company. A Change of Control of our Company will be
deemed to have taken place upon:

. the acquisition by any person of direct or indirect ownership of securities representing more than 50% of the voting power of our then outstanding stock;

. a consolidation or merger of our Company resulting in the stockholders of the Company immediately prior to such event not owning at least a majority of
the voting power of the resulting entity’s securities outstanding immediately following such event;

. the sale of substantially all of our assets; or

. the liquidation or dissolution of our Company.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.

As of March 1, 2013, we have 18,634,369 shares of Common Stock and 376,387 shares of Series 1 Preferred Stock issued and outstanding. In this respect, each one
share of Series 1 Preferred Stock has the voting rights of 5.7877 common shares, but is convertible into only 5.1 common shares. Accordingly, the 376,387 shares of
Series 1 Preferred Stock are convertible into 1,919,574 shares of Common Stock with the equivalent voting rights of 2,178,415 common shares The following table
sets forth information regarding the economic ownership of our company Common Stock by:

- each of our stockholders who is known by us to beneficially own more than 5% of our common stock;
- each of our executive officers; and
- each of our directors.

Beneficial ownership is determined based on the rules and regulations of the Commission. A person has beneficial ownership of shares if the individual has the power
to vote and/or dispose of shares. This power can be sole or shared, and direct or indirect. In computing the number of shares beneficially owned by a person and the
percentage ownership of that person, shares of common stock subject to options held by that person are counted as outstanding in such cases where the option holder
may exercise the options within 60 days of the date hereof. These shares, however, are not counted as outstanding for the purposes of computing the percentage
ownership of any other person. Except as indicated in the footnotes to the table below, each person named in the table has sole voting and dispositive power with
respect to the shares set forth opposite that person’s name.

% of Shares
Shares of of Common
Common Stock Stock
Beneficially Beneficially
Name of Beneficial Owner Owned Owned
Morry F. Rubin (1)(6) 6,096,240 29.8
George Rubin (1) 3,987,840 20.7
Ilissa and Brad Bernstein (2)(6) 3,475,000 17.3
Paul B. Healy (3) 180,000 1.0
All officers and directors as a group (four persons) (4) 13,357,180 60.7
Buechel Family Ltd Partnership (5) 1,254,926 6.7
Buechel Patient Care Research & Education Fund (5) 1,254,926 6.7
Marc Malaga 2,205,100 11.8

(1) Morry Rubin’s beneficial ownership includes options/warrants to purchase 1,841,672 shares of Common Stock granted to him and 262,000 shares in which
Morry Rubin’s wife and George Rubin are co-trustees of certain family trusts. George Rubin’s beneficial ownership includes 262,000 shares in which Morry
Rubin’s wife and George Rubin are co-trustees of certain family trusts and warrants to purchase 666,672 shares.

(2) Of the 3,475,000 shares beneficially owned by them, 2,000,000 common are owned by Ilissa Bernstein, Brad Bernstein’s wife. The remaining 1,475,000 shares
represent vested options to purchase a like amount of shares of Common Stock granted to Brad Bernstein.

(3) Includes options to purchase 60,000 shares of Common Stock.

(4) Includes all options and warrants to purchase 3,376,672 shares, but excludes options to purchase 570,000 shares which are not vested.

(5) This person beneficially owns 31,812 shares of Series 1 Preferred Stock convertible into 162,241 shares of Common Stock, with the voting rights of 184,118
shares. Each beneficial owner has the right to vote at each stockholder meeting the equivalent of 1,276,840 shares of Common Stock. These beneficial owners
are under common control of Frederick Buechel.

(6) Excludes options to purchase 225,000 shares which are not vested.
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Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans.

The following summary information is as of December 31, 2012 and relates to our 2007 Plan described elsewhere herein pursuant to which we have granted options to
purchase our common stock:

(@ (b) (0
Number of securities
remaining available

for
future issuance under
Number of shares of equity compensation
common stock to be Weighted average plans
issued upon exercise exercise price of (excluding shares
of outstanding outstanding reflected in column
Plan category options options ()
Equity Compensation Plans 2,830,000 $ 0.88 1,070,000

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence.

Due to Institutional Lender/Personal Guarantees of Messrs. M. Rubin and Bernstein

On November 8, 2011, Anchor entered into a Rediscount Credit Facility with a Commercial Bank that was effective November 30, 2011 and replaced its prior credit
facility. The maximum amount that can be borrowed under the facility is $10 million and the Bank will advance up to 80% of Anchor's advances to its clients. Anchor
pays interest on advances monthly at the 90 Day Libor Rate plus 6.25% and various other monthly fees as defined in the agreement. The agreement requires that
Anchor maintain at all times a ratio of debt to tangible net worth of four to one (4:1). At December 31, 2012, the Company was in compliance with this covenant. The
agreement contains customary representations and warranties, events of default and limitations, among other provisions. The agreement is collateralized by a first lien
on all Anchors' assets. The agreement’s anniversary date is November 30, 2013 and automatically renews each year for an additional year provided that the Company
has not provided 60 days’ notice to the Bank in advance of the anniversary date. This facility contains certain standard covenants, representations and warranties for
loans of this type. In the event that we fail to comply with the covenant(s) and the lender does not waive such non-compliance, we could be in default of our credit
facility, which could subject us to penalty rates of interest and accelerate the maturity of the outstanding balances in addition to other legal remedies, including
foreclosure on collateral. The Company’s President and CEO have provided validity guarantees to the Bank. Anchor owed this financial institution $4,977,763 as of
December 31, 2012.
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Related Party Transactions prior to 2012

Incorporated by reference is Item 13 of the Company’s Form 10-K for its fiscal year ended December 31, 2011 for a description of related party transactions which
occurred during fiscal year 2010 and fiscal year 2011.

Related Party Transactions for past two fiscal years

On June 5, 2012, upon approval of the Board, Anchor entered into two Promissory Notes totaling $400,000, one with Morry Rubin and the other with a major
shareholder of the company. Each Promissory Note was for $200,000, had a 90 day term, and earned interest (payable monthly) at 15% per annum. The Promissory
Notes were to assist Anchor in providing factoring and purchase order funding facilities to some of its clients. The Promissory Notes were subordinate to and
supplemented Anchor's $10 Million Rediscount Credit Facility with a Commercial Bank. Both promissory notes were paid on September 5, 2012. Anchor paid
$15,123 of interest on these notes for the year ended December 31, 2012.

On May 25, 2012, Anchor entered into a Participation Agreement with a funding company (Participant) whereby it sold an interest in one of its accounts so that it
could accommodate the accounts funding requirements and also mitigate some of Anchor’s credit exposure in the account. Anchor sold a 50% interest in the account
to the Participant. Provided Anchor follows a standard of care as agreed to in the Participation Agreement, any credit losses, if they occur, would be shared equally
between Anchor and the Participant. The Participant’s fee is paid monthly and is charged at the rate of 21% per annum of the average outstanding balance due to the
Participant. The fee paid to the Participant was $25,020 for the year ended December 31, 2012, and is included in interest expense - financial institutions. Anchor
owed the Participant $-0- as of September 30, 2012.

On April 26, 2011, upon approval of the Board, Anchor entered into a Promissory Note for up to $2 million from MGM Funding, LLC (MGM). Morry Rubin is the
managing member of MGM. The money to be borrowed under the note was subordinate to Anchor’s accounts receivable credit facility with a senior lender, which
required funds employed to be no less than $5,000,000 before Anchor borrowed funds from MGM. The Promissory Note was to assist Anchor in providing factoring
and purchase order funding facilities to some of its clients and it replaced an earlier agreement between the parties. This facility was to supplement Anchor's $10
Million Rediscount Credit Facility with a Commercial Bank. The MGM Promissory Note was a demand note payable together with interest at the rate of 11% per
annum. If mutually agreed upon in writing by Anchor and MGM, and if Anchor's purchase order fundings exceeded $1 Million, then interest could accrue on the
portion of the unpaid balance of this Note that is funding purchase order advances that are in excess of $1 Million at a rate equal to twenty percent (20%) per annum.
This note was paid in full as of December 31, 2011 and is no longer available to Anchor. Anchor paid $0 and $2,240 of interest to MGM for the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Independent Directors

Currently the Company has no audit, compensation, corporate governance, nominating or other committee of the Board of Directors. Under the National Association
of Securities Dealers Automated Quotations definition, an “independent director means a person other than an officer or employee of the Company or its subsidiaries
or any other individuals having a relationship that, in the opinion of the Company’s board of directors, would interfere with the exercise of independent judgment in
carrying out the responsibilities of the director. The board’s discretion in determining director independence is not completely unfettered. Further, under the
NASDAQ definition, an independent director is a person who (1) is not currently (or whose immediate family members are not currently), and has not been over the
past three years (or whose immediate family members have not been over the past three years), employed by the company; (2) has not (or whose immediate family
members have not) been paid more than $60,000 during the current or past three fiscal years; (3) has not (or whose immediately family has not) been a partner in or
controlling shareholder or executive officer of an organization which the company made, or from which the company received, payments in excess of the greater of
$200,000 or 5% of that organizations consolidated gross revenues, in any of the most recent three fiscal years; (4) has not (or whose immediate family members have
not), over the past three years been employed as an executive officer of a company in which an executive officer of Anchor has served on that company’s
compensation committee; or (5) is not currently (or whose immediate family members are not currently), and has not been over the past three years (or whose
immediate family members have not been over the past three years) a partner of Anchor’s outside auditor. Currently, Paul B. Healy is deemed by management to be an
independent director of Anchor.
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Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.
Audit Fees

During fiscal 2012, the aggregate fees billed for professional services rendered by Scott and Company LLC (the “Independent Auditors”) for the 2011 audit of the
Company's annual consolidated financial statements totaled approximately $49,500, excluding expenses. $48,500 was paid to Scott and Company LLC for the 2010
annual audit in 2011.

Financial Information Systems Design and Implementation Fees

During 2012 and 2011, there were $-0- in fees billed for professional services by Scott and Company LLC, rendered in connection with, directly or indirectly,
operating or supervising the operation of its information system or managing its local area network.

All Other Fees

During 2012, there were $24,000 in fees, excluding expenses, billed for professional services rendered by Scott and Company, LLC for review of the Company’s
quarterly filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission. During fiscal year 2011, there were $23,400 in fees billed for professional services rendered by Scott
and Company LLC for review of the Company's quarterly filings with the Commission.

PART IV.

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

(a) Financial Statements

The following documents are filed under “Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” and are included as part of this Form 10-K as the
financial statements of the Company for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firms
Consolidated Balance Sheets

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Consolidated Notes to Financial Statements
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Exhibits

The following exhibits are all previously filed in connection with our Form 10-SB, as amended, unless otherwise noted.

99.4

The following exhibits are all previously filed in connection with our Form 10-SB, as amended, unless otherwise noted.

Exchange Agreement

Certificate of Incorporation-BTHC,INC.

Certificate of Merger of BTHC XI, LLC into BTHC XI, Inc.

Certificate of Amendment

Designation of Rights and Preferences-Series 1 Convertible Preferred Stock
Amended and Restated By-laws

Form of Placement Agent Warrant issued to Fordham Financial Management
Directors’ Compensation Agreement-George Rubin

Employment Contract-Morry F. Rubin

Employment Contract-Brad Bernstein

Agreement-Line of Credit

Fordham Financial Management-Consulting Agreement

Facilities Lease — Florida

Facilities Lease — North Carolina

Loan and Security Agreement (1)

Revolving Note (1)

Debt Subordination Agreement (1)

Guaranty Agreement (Morry Rubin) (1)

Guaranty Agreement (Brad Bernstein)(1)

Continuing Guaranty Agreement (1)

Pledge Agreement (1)

Asset Purchase Agreement between the Company and Brookridge Funding LLC (2)
Senior Credit Facility between the Company and MGM Funding LLC (2)

Senior Credit Facility Guarantee - Michael P. Hilton and John A. McNiff III (4)
Employment Agreement - Michael P. Hilton (4)

Employment Agreement - John A. McNiff (4)

Accounts Receivable Credit Facility with Greystone Commercial Services LP (3)
Memorandum of Understanding - Re: Rescission Agreement*

Rescission Agreement and Exhibits Thereto (5)

Termination Agreement by and between Brookridge Funding Services LL.C and MGM Funding LLC.(5)
First Amendment to Factoring Agreement (6)

Promissory Note dated April 26, 2011 between Anchor Funding Services, Inc. and MGM Funding, LLC (7)
Rediscount Facility Agreement with TAB Bank (8)

Form of Validity Warranty to TAB Bank (8)

Amendment to Employment Agreement of Morry F. Rubin *

Subsidiaries of Registrant listing state of incorporation (4)

Rule 13a-14(a)_Certification — Principal Executive Officer *

Rule 13a-14(a)_Certification — Principal Financial Officer *

Section 1350 Certification — Principal Executive Officer *

Section 1350 Certification — Principal Financial Officer *

2007 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan

Form of Non-Qualified Option under 2007 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan
Amendment to 2007 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan increasing the Plan to 4,200,000 shares *
Press Release — Year End Results of Operations *

101.INS XBRL Instance Document,XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema *
101.SCH Document, XBRL Taxonomy Extension *

101.CAL Calculation Linkbase, XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition *
101.DEF Linkbase,XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels *

101.LAB Linkbase, XBRL Taxonomy Extension *

101.PRE Presentation Linkbase *

* Filed herewith.

(1) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed November 24, 2008 (date of earliest event November 21, 2008).
(2) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's Form 8-K filed December 8, 2009 (date of earliest event -December 4, 2009).

(3) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's Form 8-K filed December 2, 2009 (date of earliest event -November 30, 2009).

(4) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009.

(5) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's Form 8-K filed October 12, 2010 (date of earliest event -October 6, 2010).

(6) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010.

(7) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's Form 8-K filed April 28, 2011 (date of earliest event -April 26, 2011).

(8) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2011.

(b) Financial Statement Schedules



We are not filing any financial statement schedules as part of this Form 10-K because such schedules are either not applicable or the required information is included
in the financial statements or notes thereto.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by
the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

ANCHOR FUNDING SERVICES, INC.

Dated: Boca Raton, Florida By: /s/ Brad Bernstein

March 27, 2013 Brad Bernstein, President
and Principal Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant
and in the capacities and on the dates indicated:

Signatures Title Date
/s/ Brad Bernstein President and March 27, 2013
Brad Bernstein Principal Financial Officer
/s/ Morry F. Rubin Principal Executive Officer March 27, 2013
Morry F. Rubin Director and Co-Chairman

of the Board
/s/ George Rubin Co-Chairman of the Board March 27, 2013

George Rubin

Director March 27, 2013
/s/ Paul B. Healy
Paul B. Healy

Morry F. Rubin, Brad Bernstein, George Rubin and Paul B. Healy represent all the current members of the Board of Directors.
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Exhibit 10.29
AMENDMENT TO
EXECUTIVE EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDMENT TO EXECUTIVE EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”), dated as of November 30, 2012, is entered into by and
between Anchor Funding Services, Inc., a Delaware corporation (together with its subsidiaries, the “Company”), and Morry Rubin (the “Employee”).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Employee and the Company entered into an Employment Agreement dated as of January 31, 2007 (the “Employment Agreement”) for
Employee to serve the Company as Co-Chairman and Chief Executive Officer; and

WHEREAS, the Company and Employee desire to amend the Employment Agreement so that Mr. Rubin will continue to devote such time as is necessary for
the performance of his duties.

NOW THEREFORE in consideration of the mutual benefits to be derived from this Amendment, the Company and the Employee hereby agree as follows:

1. Section 1(b) of the Employment Agreement is hereby deleted and replaced with the following language:

“(b) The Employee shall be required to devote such time as is necessary to the business and affairs of the Company (other than during
vacations and periods of illness or incapacity) as is necessary for the performance of his duties. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Employee shall be permitted to: (i)
serve as a director of any organization or entity that does not result in a violation of Section 5; (ii) deliver lectures or fulfill speaking engagements; or (iii) make and
manage passive investments and engage in charitable and community activities but only if such services and activities do not interfere with the performance of his
duties and responsibilities under this Agreement.”
2. The Employment Agreement, as amended herein, contains the entire agreement between the Company and the Employee with respect to the subject matter
thereof. The Employment Agreement as amended herein may not be amended, waived, changed, modified or discharged except by an instrument in writing executed

by or on behalf of the party against whom enforcement of any amendment, waiver, change, modification or discharge is sought. No course of conduct or dealing shall
be construed to modify, amend or otherwise affect any of the provisions of the Employment Agreement as amended herein.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement effective as of the date first above written.
COMPANY:

ANCHOR FUNDING SERVICES, INC.

By: /s/ Brad Bernstein

Brad Bernstein, President

EMPLOYEE:

By: /s/ Morry F. Rubin
Morry F. Rubin




Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULES 13a-14(a) AND 15d-14(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED

I, Morry F. Rubin certifies that:
1. Thave reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Anchor Funding Services, Inc.;

2 Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made,
in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the consolidated financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and
have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during
the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors:

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.

Date: March 27, 2013
/s/ Morry F. Rubin

Morry F. Rubin
Principal Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULES 13a-14(a) AND 15d-14(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED

I, Brad Bernstein certifies that:
1. Thave reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Anchor Funding Services, Inc.;

2 Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made,
in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the consolidated financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and
have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during
the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors:

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.

Date: March 27, 2013

/s/ Brad Bernstein

Brad Bernstein
Principal Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the Annual Report of Anchor Funding Services, Inc. (the “registrant”) on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “report”), I, Morry F. Rubin, Chief Executive Officer of the registrant, certify, pursuant to
18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:

(1) The report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the registrant.
March 27, 2013

/s/ Morry F. Rubin

Morry F. Rubin
Principal Executive Officer




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the Annual Report of Anchor Funding Services, Inc. (the “registrant”) on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “report”), I, Brad Bernstein, Chief Financial Officer of the registrant, certify, pursuant to
18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:

(1) The report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the registrant.
March 27, 2013

/s/ Brad Bernstein

Brad Bernstein
Principal Financial Officer




Exhibit 99.3

Amendment to 2007 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan

Section 4.(a) is amended to read as follows:

“Shares Authorized. Subject to adjustment as described in subsection (d) below, the aggregate number of shares of Company Stock that may be issued or transferred
under the Plan is 4,200,000 shares.”



FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE - March 27, 2013
Anchor Funding Services, Inc. reports net income of $378,859 for calendar 2012 as compared to $275,225 for 2011.

Boca Raton, Fl. (PR Newswire) March 27, 2013 — Anchor Funding Services, Inc. (OTC Bulletin Board Symbol “AFNG.OB”) announced today its results of
operations for the year ended December 31, 2012. Anchor reported 2012 finance revenues increased to $2,526,626 from $2,404,542 for 2011, an increase of 5.1%. The
change in revenue was primarily due to an increase in business from existing clients and adding new clients. Our net income for 2012 increased to $378,859, as
compared to $275,225 for 2011, an increase of 37.7%. The improved operations for 2012 were accomplished through increased sales of 5.1% and a decrease in interest
expense of 9.2%, partially offset by a 2.5% increase in operating expenses.

Anchor continues to experience demand for its financing product services. Anchor purchased approximately $95.9 million of invoices during 2012 compared to $75.4
million for 2011.

Morry F. Rubin, CEO, stated "We are excited about our profitable results and our ability to be more competitive in the marketplace and fund larger transactions with
the credit facility we entered into in November 2011. Since having completed our private placement of convertible preferred securities in April 2007, we have
organically grown the portfolio from less than a dozen clients in a few states to servicing more than 100 companies in over 30 states in 2012. We are focused on adding
additional credit worthy clients to our national portfolio and seeking acquisition opportunities.”

We are excited about our future expansion opportunities and will continue to communicate important developments as they occur.
About Anchor

Anchor provides innovative accounts receivable funding, purchase order financing, inventory funding and credit management services to small and mid-size U.S.
businesses. Our funding program which is based upon creditworthiness of accounts receivable, provides rapid and flexible financing to support small businesses’ daily
working capital needs.

Additional Information

For additional information, a copy of Anchor’s Form 10-K can be obtained on the Internet by going to www.sec.gov, clicking “Search for Company filings,” then
clicking “Companies & Other Filers,” typing in our company name and clicking “find Companies.”

Safe Harbor Statement Under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.

Certain statements in this press release constitute “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Such
forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which may cause the actual results, performance or achievements of
Anchor to be materially different from any future results, performances or achievements express or implied by such forward-looking statements. The forward-looking
statements are subject to risks and uncertainties including, without limitation, changes in levels of competition, possible loss of customers, and Anchor’s ability to
attract and retain key personnel.

Contact Morry F. Rubin, Chairman and C.E.O. 561-961-5000
Email: mrubin@anchorfundingservices.com



